**Registration No. 333-**

### UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

## FORM S-3

#### REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

AVALON GLOBOCARE CORP. (Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)

Delaware (State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization) 47-1685128 (I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)

4400 Route 9 South, Suite 3100 Freehold, NJ 07728 (732) 780-4400

(Address, Including Zip Code, and Telephone Number, Including Area Code, of Registrant's Principal Executive Offices)

David Jin, M.D., Ph.D. Chief Executive Officer AVALON GLOBOCARE CORP. 4400 Route 9 South, Suite 3100 Freehold, NJ 07728 (732) 780-4400

(Name, Address, Including Zip Code, and Telephone Number, Including Area Code, of Agent For Service)

Copy to:

Laura Anthony, Esq. Craig D. Linder, Esq. Anthony, Linder & Cacomanolis, PLLC 1700 Palm Beach Lakes Blvd., Suite 820 West Palm Beach, FL 33401 (561) 514-0936

Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale to the public: From time to time after this Registration Statement becomes effective.

If the only securities being registered on this Form are being offered pursuant to dividend or interest reinvestment plans, please check the following box

If any of the securities being registered on this Form are to be offered on a delayed or continuous basis pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act of 1933, other than securities offered only in connection with dividend or interest reinvestment plans, check the following box.

If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, please check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering.

If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(c) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering.

If this Form is a registration statement pursuant to General Instruction I.D. or a post-effective amendment thereto that shall become effective upon filing with the Commission pursuant to Rule 462(e) under the Securities Act, check the following box.

If this Form is a post-effective amendment to a registration statement filed pursuant to General Instruction I.D. filed to register additional securities or additional classes of securities pursuant to Rule 413(b) under the Securities Act, check the following box.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer," and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.:

Large accelerated filer		Accelerated filer	
Non-accelerated filer	$\times$	Smaller reporting company	X
Emerging growth company			

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act.

The registrant hereby amends this registration statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until the registrant shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this registration statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or until this registration statement shall become effective on such date as the Securities and Exchange Commission, acting pursuant to such Section 8(a), may determine.

The information in this prospectus is not complete and may be changed. We may not sell these securities until the registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This prospectus is not an offer to sell securities, and it is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any state where the offer or sale is not permitted.

Subject to Completion, Dated June 12, 2025

# PROSPECTUS



## \$100,000,000

# AVALON GLOBOCARE CORP.

## Common Stock, Preferred Stock, Warrants, Rights,

### Stock Purchase Contracts, Stock Purchase Units, Depositary Shares and Units

We may offer and sell, from time to time in one or more offerings of the following securities:

- shares of common stock, par value \$0.0001 per share;
- shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.0001 per share;
- warrants to purchase shares of our common stock, preferred stock and/or other securities;
- rights to purchase shares of our common stock, preferred stock, warrants and/or depositary shares;
- stock purchase contracts;
- stock purchase units;
- depositary shares;
- units consisting of a combination of the foregoing securities; or
- any combination of these securities.

We may offer and sell up to \$100,000,000 in the aggregate of the securities identified above from time to time in one or more offerings. This prospectus provides a general description of the securities that we may offer. However, this prospectus may not be used to offer or sell our securities unless accompanied by a prospectus supplement relating to the offered securities. Each time that we offer securities under this prospectus, we will provide the specific terms of the securities offered, including the public offering price, in a related prospectus supplement. Such prospectus supplement may add to, update or change information contained in this prospectus. To the extent there is a conflict between the information contained in this prospectus and the information contained in any prospectus supplement, you should rely on the information in the prospectus supplement. You should read this prospectus and any applicable prospectus supplement together with additional information described under the headings "Where You Can Find More Information" and "Information Incorporated By Reference" before making your investment decision.

These securities may be sold directly by us, through dealers or agents designated from time to time, to or through underwriters or through a combination of these methods. See "Plan of Distribution" in this prospectus for additional information on methods of sale. We may also describe the plan of distribution for any particular offering of our securities in a prospectus supplement. If any agents, underwriters or dealers are involved in the sale of any securities with respect to which this prospectus is being delivered, we will disclose their names and the nature of our arrangements with them in that prospectus supplement. The net proceeds we expect to receive from any such sale will also be included in the prospectus supplement.

Our common stock, par value \$0.0001 per share, is listed on The Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol "ALBT". On June 11, 2025, the last reported sales price of our common stock listed under the symbol ALBT was \$3.11 per share. Each prospectus supplement will indicate whether the securities offered thereby will be listed on any securities exchange.

As of June 12, 2025, the aggregate market value of our outstanding common equity held by non-affiliates, or public float, was \$7,107,495 based on 2,132,236 shares of common stock outstanding, of which 1,754,937 shares are held by non-affiliates, and a per share price of \$4.05, which was the closing price of our common stock on The Nasdaq Capital Market on April 28, 2025 (within 60 days prior to the date of filing). Therefore, as of June 12, 2025, the aggregate market value of our common equity held by non-affiliates was less than \$75,000,000, as calculated in accordance with General Instruction I.B.1 of Form S-3. As of the date of this prospectus, we have offered and sold \$2,857,852 worth of securities pursuant to General Instruction I.B.6 to Form S-3 during the 12-calendar month period that ends on and includes the date hereof. Pursuant to General Instruction I.B.6 of Form S-3, in no event will we sell securities in a public primary offering with a value exceeding more than one-third of our "public float" (the market value of our common stock held by our non-affiliates) in any 12-month period so long as our public float remains below \$75,000,000.

An investment in our securities involves a high degree of risk. See the sections entitled "<u>Risk Factors</u>" included in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K and in any subsequent Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, which are incorporated by reference into this prospectus, as well as in any prospectus supplement related to a specific offering we make pursuant to this prospectus. You should carefully read this entire prospectus together with any related prospectus supplement and the information incorporated by reference into both before you make your investment decision.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

This prospectus may not be used to sell securities unless accompanied by a prospectus supplement.

The date of this prospectus is \_\_\_\_\_, 2025

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	PAGE
ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS	ii
SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	iii
PROSPECTUS SUMMARY	1
THE OFFERING	2
THE COMPANY	3
RISK FACTORS	11
USE OF PROCEEDS	12
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES	13
DESCRIPTIONS OF SECURITIES	14
DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK	15
DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS	19
DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES	22
DESCRIPTION OF RIGHTS	24
DESCRIPTION OF STOCK PURCHASE CONTRACTS	25
DESCRIPTION OF UNITS	26
FORMS OF SECURITIES	27
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	29
LEGAL OPINIONS	31
EXPERTS	31
LIMITATION ON LIABILITY AND DISCLOSURE OF COMMISSION POSITION ON INDEMNIFICATION FOR SECURITIES ACT LIABILITIES	31
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	31
INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE	32

i

# ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") using a "shelf" registration process. Under this shelf registration process, we may offer from time to time securities having a maximum aggregate offering price of \$100,000,000. Each time we offer securities, we will prepare and file with the SEC a prospectus supplement that describes the specific amounts, prices and terms of the securities we offer. The prospectus supplement also may add, update or change information contained in this prospectus or the documents incorporated herein by reference. You should read carefully both this prospectus and any prospectus supplement together with additional information described below under "Where You Can Find More Information" and "Information Incorporated by Reference."

This prospectus does not contain all the information provided in the registration statement we filed with the SEC. For further information about us or our securities offered hereby, you should refer to that registration statement, which you can obtain from the SEC or directly from us as described below under "Where You Can Find More Information."

You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus or any prospectus supplement. We have not authorized any other person to provide you with different information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. This prospectus is not an offer to sell securities, and it is not soliciting an offer to buy securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted. You should assume that the information appearing in this prospectus or any prospectus supplement, as well as information we have previously filed with the SEC and incorporated by reference, is accurate as of the date of those documents only. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed since those dates.

We may sell securities through underwriters or dealers, through agents, directly to purchasers or through any combination of these methods. We and our agents reserve the sole right to accept or reject in whole or in part any proposed purchase of securities. The prospectus supplement, which we will prepare and file with the SEC each time we offer securities, will set forth the names of any underwriters, agents or others involved in the sale of securities, and any applicable fee, commission or discount arrangements with them. See "Plan of Distribution." In this prospectus, unless otherwise indicated, "Avalon," "ALBT," "the Company," "we," "us," or "our" refer to AVALON GLOBOCARE CORP., a Delaware corporation, and its consolidated subsidiaries.

On October 28, 2024, the Company effectuated a reverse stock split of the Company's common stock at a ratio of 1-for-15 (the "Reverse Stock Split"). All amounts and values presented in this prospectus have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the Reverse Stock Split for all periods presented, unless otherwise indicated.



## SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Statements in this prospectus and in the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act. Any statements contained herein, other than statements of historical fact, including statements regarding the progress and timing of our product development programs; our future opportunities; our business strategy, future operations, anticipated financial position, future revenues and projected costs; our management's prospects, plans and objectives; and any other statements about our management's future expectations, beliefs, goals, plans or prospects constitute forward-looking statements. Examples of such statements are those that include words such as "may," "assume(s)," "forecast(s)," "position(s)," "gredict(s)," "strategy," "will," "expect(s)," "estimate(s)," "anticipate(s)," "believe(s)," "project(s)," "intend(s)," "plan(s)," "bluggt(s)," "bottial," "continue" and variations thereof. However, the words cited as examples in the preceding statements.

Because these statements implicate risks and uncertainties, as well as certain assumptions, actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially include, but are not limited to, those risks identified under "<u>Risk Factors</u>" in our most recent annual report on Form 10-K and our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and, from time to time in our other filings with the SEC. Important factors, risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those forward-looking statements include but are not limited to:

### **Risks Related to the Potential Merger with YOOV**

- The risk that the conditions to the closing of the transaction are not satisfied, including the failure to obtain stockholder approval for the transaction.
- The timing, receipt and terms and conditions of any required regulatory approvals of the Merger that could cause the parties to abandon the Merger.
- Our and YOOV's ability to meet expectations regarding the timing and completion of the Merger.
- Uncertainties as to the timing of the consummation of the transaction and the ability of each of us and YOOV to consummate the transaction.
- Risks related to our continued listing on The Nasdaq Capital Market until closing of the Merger.
- Risks that our stock price may decline significantly if the Merger is not completed.
- The outcome of any legal proceedings that may be instituted against us and others following the announcement of the Merger Agreement.
- Expectations regarding the strategies, prospects, plans, expectations and objectives of management of us or YOOV for future operations of the combined company following the closing of the Merger.
- The ability of the combined company to recognize the benefits that may be derived from the Merger, including the commercial or market opportunity of the YOOV business.
- Risks related to our and YOOV's ability to correctly estimate their respective operating expenses and expenses associated with the transaction, uncertainties regarding the
  impact any delay in the closing would have on the anticipated cash resources of the combined company upon closing and other events and unanticipated spending and costs
  that could reduce the combined company's cash resources.



- The occurrence of any event, change or other circumstance or condition that could give rise to the termination of the Merger Agreement.
- The fact that under the terms of the Merger Agreement, we are restrained from soliciting other acquisition proposals during the pendency of the Merger, except in certain circumstances.
- The effect of the announcement or pendency of the Merger on our or YOOV's business relationships, operating results and business generally, including disruption of our and YOOV's management's attention from ongoing business operations due to the Merger and potential adverse reactions or changes to business relationships resulting from the announcement or completion of the transaction.
- The risk that the Merger Agreement may be terminated in circumstances that require us to pay a termination fee.
- YOOV is a British Virgin Islands holding company with operations in Hong Kong by its operating subsidiaries.

### **General Operating and Business Risks**

- Our limited operating history makes it difficult for us to evaluate our future business prospects and make decisions based on those estimates of our future performance.
- Our results of operations have not resulted in profitability and we may not be able to achieve profitability going forward.
- There is substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern, which will affect our ability to obtain future financing and may require us to curtail our operations.
- Our cash will only fund our operations for a limited time and we will need to raise additional capital in order to support our business and business prospects.
- If the merger with YOOV is not completed, we may not have sufficient capital to continue to operate our business in the short term and may become insolvent and be required to seek the protection of the bankruptcy courts or seek dissolution and, without additional funding or a strategic transaction, we would likely be delisted from Nasdaq.
- Joint ventures, joint ownership arrangements and other projects pose unique challenges and we may not be able to fully implement or realize synergies, expected returns or other anticipated benefits associated with such projects.
- We must effectively manage the growth of our operations, or our company will suffer.
- Potential liability claims may adversely affect our business.
- In accordance with our strategic development policy, we may invest in companies for strategic reasons and may not realize a return on our investments.
- Obtaining and maintaining patent protection depends on compliance with various procedural, document submission, fee payment and other requirements imposed by
  governmental patent agencies, and any patent protection we may obtain in the future could be reduced or eliminated for non-compliance with these requirements.
- It is difficult and costly to protect our proprietary rights, and we may not be able to ensure their protection. If we fail to protect or enforce our intellectual property rights adequately or secure rights to patents of others, the value of our intellectual property rights would diminish.
- Some of our medical device products in the future may face significant government regulation, and there is no guarantee that our medical devices will receive regulatory
  approval.



- · Even if our medical devices receive regulatory approval, we may still face future development and regulatory difficulties.
- Any medical devices we develop may become subject to unfavorable pricing regulations, third party coverage and reimbursement practices or healthcare reform initiatives, thereby harming our business.
- The healthcare industry is heavily regulated in the U.S. at the federal, state, and local levels, and our failure to comply with applicable requirements may subject us to penalties and negatively affect our financial condition.
- Our officers, directors and principal stockholders own a significant percentage of our Common Stock and will be able to exert significant control over matters that are subject to stockholder approval, including the Merger.
- If we are unable to maintain listing of our Common Stock on The Nasdaq Capital Market or another reputable stock exchange, it may be more difficult for our stockholders to sell their securities.
- The price of our Common Stock may be volatile and fluctuate substantially, which could result in substantial losses for our stockholders
- Our stockholders may experience dilution of ownership interests because of the future issuance of additional shares of our Common Stock or our Preferred Stock or other securities that are convertible into or exercisable for our Common Stock or our Preferred Stock.
- If any of our trade secrets, know-how or other proprietary information is disclosed, the value of our trade secrets, know-how and other proprietary rights would be significantly impaired and our business and competitive position would suffer.
- Other factors discussed in this prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference herein, including those set forth under <u>Risk Factors</u>" in our Preliminary Proxy Statement and Prospectus, dated June 10, 2025, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") pursuant to Rule 424(b) of the Securities Act, forming a part of the registration statement on Form S-4, as amended, which has not been declared effective as of the date of this prospectus.



### Risks related to our common stock and warrants, including:

- · Volatility in the price of the Company's common stock and warrants.
- · Risks relating to a potential dilution as a result of future equity offerings.
- Risks relating to a short "squeeze" resulting in sudden increases in demand for the Company's common stock.
- Risks relating to decreased liquidity of the Company's common stock as a result of a reverse stock split.
- Risks relating to information published by third parties about the Company that may not be reliable or accurate.
- Risks associated with interest rate changes.
- · Volatility in the price of the Company's common stock could subject us to securities litigation.
- · Risks associated with future offerings of senior debt or equity securities.
- · Risks related to a potential delisting by The Nasdaq Capital Market.
- Risks related to limited access to the Company's financial information due to the fact the Company elected to take advantage of the disclosure requirement exemptions
  granted to smaller reporting companies.

The information in this prospectus or any prospectus supplement speaks only as of the date of that document and the information incorporated herein by reference speaks only as of the date of the document incorporated by reference. Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. Forward-looking statements include our plans and objectives for future operations, including plans and objectives relating to our products and services and our future economic performance. Assumptions relating to the foregoing involve judgments with respect to, among other things, future economic, competitive and market conditions as well as future business decisions, including any acquisitions, mergers, dispositions, joint ventures, investments and any other business development transactions we may enter into in the future. The amounts of time and money required to successfully complete development and commercialization of our products and services, as well as any evolution of or shift in our business plans, or to execute any future strategic options, are difficult or impossible to predict accurately and may involve factors that are beyond our control. Although we believe that the assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements contained herein are reasonable, any of those assumptions could prove inaccurate, and therefore, we cannot assure you that the results contemplated in any of the forward-looking statements contained herein will be realized.

Based on the significant uncertainties inherent in the forward-looking statements described herein, the inclusion of any such statement should not be regarded as a representation by us or any other person that our objectives or plans will be achieved. Accordingly, you should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements.

vi

# PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

This prospectus summary highlights certain information about our Company and other information contained elsewhere in this prospectus or in documents incorporated by reference. This summary does not contain all of the information that you should consider before making an investment decision. You should carefully read the entire prospectus, any prospectus supplement, including the section entitled "Risk Factors," and the documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus before making an investment decision.

# THE OFFERING

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we filed with the SEC utilizing a shelf registration process. Under this shelf registration process, we may sell any combination of:

- common stock;
- preferred stock;
- warrants to purchase any of the securities listed above;
- rights to purchase any of the securities listed above; and/or
- stock purchase contracts;
- stock purchase units;
- depositary shares; and
- units consisting of one or more of the foregoing.

in one or more offerings up to a total dollar amount of \$100,000,000. This prospectus provides you with a general description of the securities we may offer. Each time we sell securities, we will provide a prospectus supplement that will contain specific information about the terms of that specific offering and include a discussion of any risk factors or other special considerations that apply to those securities. The prospectus supplement may also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus. You should read both this prospectus and any prospectus supplement together with the additional information described under the heading "<u>Where You Can Find More Information</u>."

## THE COMPANY

### **Business Overview**

We are a commercial-stage company dedicated to developing and delivering precision diagnostic consumer products and the advancement of intellectual property in cellular therapy. We are currently marketing the KetoAir<sup>TM</sup> breathalyzer device and plan to develop additional diagnostic uses of the breathalyzer technology. The KetoAir<sup>TM</sup> is registered with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration as a Class I medical device. In addition, we own and operate commercial real estate at our headquarters in Freehold, NJ. We also provided laboratory services in 2024 and 2023, offering a broad portfolio of diagnostic tests, including drug testing, toxicology, and a broad array of test services, from general bloodwork to anatomic pathology, and urine toxicology. We completed an acquisition of a 40% membership interest in Laboratory Services MSO, LLC ("Lab Services MSO"), which closed in February 2023. During the first quarter of 2025, to preserve cash, the Company entered into discussions with Lab Services MSO for the potential redemption of our investment and on February 26, 2025, we and Lab Services MSO entered into a Redemption and Abandonment Agreement, whereby Lab Services MSO redeemed the 40% equity interest in Lab Services MSO held by us. Accordingly, beginning in February 2025, we no longer offer laboratory services.

In 2024, we initiated sales of our first diagnostic consumer product, KetoAir<sup>TM</sup>, a device that tests ketosis levels.

We had the following areas of focus in 2025, 2024 and 2023:

## **Research and Development**

We are focused on bringing forward intellectual property through joint patent filings with the Massachusetts Institute of Technology ("MIT"). We completed a sponsored research and co-development project MIT led by Professor Shuguang Zhang as Principal Investigator. Using the unique QTY code protein design platform, six water-soluble variant cytokine receptors have been successfully designed and tested to show binding affinity to the respective cytokines. We currently are focused on bringing forward the intellectual property associated with this program through joint patent submissions.

### **Product Commercialization**

We have begun the commercialization and development of a versatile breathalyzer system.

We were granted exclusive distributorship rights for the KetoAir from Qi Diagnostics for the following territories: North America, South America, the EU and the UK. For our commercialization strategy, we intend to target the diabetes and obesity markets. We sell the product through the KetoAir website and social media. We believe the KetoAir device has some competitive advantages to other methods for measuring ketosis.

The KetoAir is a handheld device that allows the user to detect acetone levels in exhaled breath. The acetone level is in concentration units (ppm, part-per-million) such that the user will know his/her real-time ketosis status: inadequate ketosis (0-3.99 ppm), mild ketosis (4-9.99 ppm), optimal ketosis (10-40 ppm), or alarming level (> 40 ppm). The KetoAir is registered with the United States Food and Drug Administration as a Class I medical device. The device is also paired with an "AI Nutritionist" software program (via Bluetooth connection) which is downloadable from Google Play (for Android mobile phones, approved) and iPhone (the app is currently being reviewed by Apple iOS AppStore). It helps users monitor and manage their ketogenic diet and related programs. We believe the KetoAir can be an essential tool to help diabetic patients adhere to their therapeutic programs and optimize their ketogenic dietary management.

### Laboratory Acquisitions

We had embarked on a laboratory rollup strategy focused on forming joint ventures and acquiring laboratories that were accretive to our commercial strategy. As a first step, in February 2023, we acquired a 40% membership interest in Lab Services MSO. Among other things, Lab Services MSO provides toxicology and wellness testing services, a broad portfolio of diagnostic tests, and a broad array of test services. During the first quarter of 2025, to preserve cash, the Company entered into discussions with Lab Services MSO for the potential redemption of our investment and on February 26, 2025, we and Lab Services MSO entered into a Redemption and Abandonment Agreement, whereby Lab Services MSO redeemed the 40% equity interest in Lab Services MSO held by us. Accordingly, beginning in February 2025, we no longer offer laboratory services.

### Other Areas

In order to preserve cash and focus on product commercialization, we have currently suspended all research and development efforts related to cellular therapy in order to redirect our funding efforts to our core business strategies outlined above.

### **Recent Developments**

## Mortgage and Security Agreement

On March 27, 2024, the Company entered into a Mortgage and Security Agreement (the "Mast Hill Mortgage") with Mast Hill Fund L.P. ("Mast Hill") to secure the payment performance and obligation under certain follow-up financing agreements described below.

In March 2024, the Company entered into follow-up financing agreements with Mast Hill, which included the issuance of 13% senior secured promissory notes totaling \$700,000 convertible into common stock, as well as the issuance of up to 7,000 shares of common stock as a commitment fee, and warrants for the purchase of up to 8,750 shares of common stock at an initial price per share of \$30.00, and common share purchase warrants for the purchase of up to 8,077 shares of common stock at an initial price per share of \$19.50, with a total purchase price of \$665,000 (the "2024 Financing Agreements"). These agreements were made under the same terms and conditions of the prior rounds of convertible note financing in October 2023 and May 2023 (the "2023 Financing Agreements").

On March 27, 2024, the Company also entered into a Mortgage and Security Agreement (the "Firstfire Mortgage") with Firstfire Global Opportunities Fund, LLC ("Firstfire") to secure the payment performance and obligation under the 2023 Financing Agreements.

### Convertible Note Financing and Mortgage and Security Agreement

On June 5, 2024, the Company entered into securities purchase agreements (the "Securities Purchase Agreements") with Mast Hill for the issuance of 13% senior secured promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of \$2,845,000 (collectively, the "Notes") convertible into shares of the Company's common stock, as well as the issuance of up to 26,800 shares of common stock as a commitment fee and warrants for the purchase of up to 146,667 shares of common stock (the "Convertible Note Financing"). The Company and its subsidiaries entered into those certain security agreements (the "Security Agreements"), creating a security interest in certain property of the Company and its subsidiaries to secure the prompt payment, performance and discharge in full of all of the Company's obligations under the Notes. The transaction closed on June 5, 2024.

Mast Hill acquired the Notes with principal amount of \$2,845,000 and paid the purchase price of \$2,702,750 after an original issue discount of \$142,250, with a conversion price of \$11.25, subject to adjustment as provided in Notes. Also on June 5, 2024, the Company issued (i) a warrant to purchase 66,667 shares of common stock with an exercise price of \$9.75 exercisable until June 5, 2029 (the "First Warrant"), (ii) a warrant to purchase 80,000 shares of common stock with an exercise price of \$7.50 exercisable until June 5, 2029, which warrant shall be cancelled and extinguished against payment of the Notes (the "Second Warrant" and collectively with the First Warrant, the "Warrants"), and (iii) 26,800 shares of common stock to Mast Hill as additional consideration for the purchase of the Note (the "Commitment Shares"), which were earned in full as of June 5, 2024. On the closing date, the Company delivered such duly executed Notes, warrants and common stock to Mast Hill against delivery of such purchase price.

4

The Company used the proceeds from the Convertible Note Financing to pay off all previously issued convertible notes to Mast Hill and Firstfire.

On June 5, 2024, the Company also entered into a Mortgage and Security Agreement (the "Mortgage") with Mast Hill to secure the payment, performance, and obligations under the above-mentioned Convertible Note Financing. As of June 5, 2024, the Company was indebted to Mast Hill in the combined principal sum of \$2,845,000.

On December 15, 2024, the Company and Mast Hill entered into that certain consent, acknowledgement, and waiver agreement, pursuant to which Mast Hill waived all amortization payments required to be made under the Note, the Company paid a waiver fee of \$150,000 to Mast Hill, and the Company issued to Mast Hill a common stock purchase warrant for the purchase of up to 150,000 shares of the Company's common stock.

## At-the-Market Offering

In June 2023, the Company entered into a sales agreement (the "Sales Agreement") with Roth Capital Partners, LLC ("Roth") under which the Company could offer and sell from time to time shares of its common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to \$3.5 million. From July 1, 2023 to August 16, 2024, we sold an aggregate of 312,285 shares of our common stock at an average price of \$11.19 per share to investors pursuant to the Sales Agreement, and received net cash proceeds of \$3,388,251, net of cash paid for Roth's commissions and other fees of \$104,992.

## Reverse Stock Split & Decrease in Authorized Shares

On October 23, 2024, the Company filed a certificate of amendment (the "Amendment") to its Certificate of Incorporation with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware to effectuate a reverse stock split of the Company's common stock at a ratio of 1-for-15 (the "Reverse Stock Split"), as well as the decrease in the number of shares of common stock authorized for issuance from 490,000,000 to 100,000,000. The Amendment became effective at 5:00 p.m. ET on October 25, 2024.

## Series C Convertible Preferred Stock

On December 13, 2024, the Company filed a certificate of designations of preferences, rights, and limitations of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock (the "Series C Certificate of Designations") with the State of Delaware which provides for the designation of 10,000 shares of Series C preferred stock of the Company, par value \$0.0001 per share, upon the terms and conditions as set forth in the Series C Certificate of Designations. Each share of Series C Preferred Stock has a stated value of \$1,000 (the "Stated Value").

The Series C Preferred Stock shall rank (i) senior to the Company's common stock (the "Common Stock") and any other class or series of capital stock of the Company created hereafter, the terms of which specifically provide that such class or series shall rank junior to the Series C Preferred Stock, (ii) pari passu with any class or series of capital stock of the Company created hereafter specifically ranking, by its terms, on par with the Series C Preferred Stock, (iii) pari passu with Series B Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company (the "Series B Preferred Stock") with respect to its rights, preferences and restrictions, and (iv) subordinate to the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company (the "Series A Preferred Stock").

Holders of the Series C Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive, and the Company shall pay, dividends on shares of Series C Preferred Stock equal (on an as-ifconverted-to-common-stock basis, disregarding for such purpose any conversion limitations hereunder) to and in the same form as dividends actually paid on shares of the common stock when, as and if such dividends are paid on shares of the common stock.

Holders of the Series C Preferred Stock have no voting power except as otherwise required by the Delaware General Corporation Law.

Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company, whether voluntary or involuntary (a "Liquidation"), the holders of the Series C Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive out of the assets available for distribution to stockholders, (i) after and subject to the payment in full of all amounts required to be distributed to the holders of another class or series of stock of the Company ranking on liquidation prior and in preference to the Series C Preferred Stock, (ii) ratably with any class or series of stock ranking on liquidation on parity with the Series C Preferred Stock and (iii) in preference and priority to the holders of the shares of common stock, an amount equal to 100% of the Stated Value of the Series C Preferred Stock, in proportion to the full and preferential amount that all shares of the Series C Preferred Stock are entitled to receive.

Each share of Series C Preferred Stock shall be convertible into common stock (the "Conversion Shares") at a conversion per share equal to \$2.41, at the option of the holder, at any time after the later of (i) the date of the shareholder approval of the issuance of the Conversion Shares pursuant to the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market and (ii) the one year anniversary of the date of the first issuance of any shares of the Series C Preferred Stock. In addition, the holder shall not have the right to convert any portion of the Series C Preferred Stock if, after giving effect to the conversion, such holder (together with its affiliates) would beneficially own in excess of 19.99% of the number of shares of the common stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the issuance of the respective Conversion Shares.

### York Sun Securities Purchase Agreement

On December 19, 2024, the Company entered into that certain securities purchase agreement (the "Securities Purchase Agreement"), with an accredited investor, York Sun Investment Holding Limited (the "Investor"), pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue and sell to the Investor, upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Securities Purchase Agreement, up to 7,000 shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock for up to an aggregate of \$7,000,000 (the "Purchase Price"), which is equal to \$1,000 per share. The first closing occurred on December 24, 2024, with respect to the Investor's purchase of 3,500 shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock in exchange for \$3,500,000.

The Investor shall also have a right of first refusal during the period beginning on the date of the Securities Purchase Agreement and continuing until such shareholder approval is obtained, on all issuances of convertible preferred stock of the Company, excluding agreements that are in place prior to the date of the Securities Purchase Agreement and issuances of new classes of convertible preferred stock in exchange for existing classes of convertible preferred stock. Additionally, the Investor has the right, pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement to appoint one member to, or to replace one member of, the Company's board of directors, subject to all applicable Nasdaq rules.

The Investor's purchase of the remaining 3,500 shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock under the Securities Purchase Agreement in exchange for an additional \$3,500,000 was required to occur within 120 calendar days of the date of the Securities Purchase Agreement but did not occur within such timeframe.

## Series D Convertible Preferred Stock

On January 6, 2025, the Company filed a certificate of designations of preferences, rights, and limitations of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock (the "Series D Certificate of Designations") with the Department of State, Division of Corporations, of the State of Delaware, which provides for the designation of 5,000 shares of Series D Preferred Stock of the Company, par value \$0.0001 per share, upon the terms and conditions as set forth in the Series D Certificate of Designations. Each share of Series D Preferred Stock has a stated value of \$1,000 (the "Stated Value").

The Series D Preferred Stock shall rank (i) senior to the Company's common stock and any other class or series of capital stock of the Company created hereafter, the terms of which specifically provide that such class or series shall rank junior to the Series D Preferred Stock, (ii) pari passu with any class or series of capital stock of the Company created hereafter specifically ranking, by its terms, on par with the Series D Preferred Stock, (iii) pari passu with the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company (the "Series B Preferred Stock") with respect to its rights, preferences and restrictions, and (iv) pari passu with the Series C Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company (the "Series C Preferred Stock").

Holders of the Series D Preferred Stock have no voting power except as otherwise required by the Delaware General Corporation Law.

Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company, whether voluntary or involuntary (a "Liquidation"), the holders of the Series D Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive out of the assets available for distribution to stockholders, (i) after and subject to the payment in full of all amounts required to be distributed to the holders of another class or series of stock of the Company ranking on liquidation prior and in preference to the Series D Preferred Stock, (ii) ratably with any class or series of stock ranking on liquidation on parity with the Series D Preferred Stock and (iii) in preference and priority to the holders of the shares of Common Stock, an amount equal to 100% of the Stated Value of the Series D Preferred Stock, in proportion to the full and preferential amount that all shares of the Series D Preferred Stock are entitled to receive.

Each share of Series D Preferred Stock shall be convertible into common stock (the "Conversion Shares") at a conversion per share equal to \$2.41, at the option of the holder, at any time after the Company has obtained shareholder approval for the issuance of the Conversion Shares pursuant to the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market. In addition, the holder shall not have the right to convert any portion of the Series D Preferred Stock if, after giving effect to the conversion, such holder (together with its affiliates) would beneficially own in excess of 4.99% of the number of shares of the common stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the issuance of the respective Conversion Shares.

### Wenzhao Lu Exchange Agreement

On January 9, 2025, the Company entered into an exchange agreement with Wenzhao Lu, the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company, pursuant to which Mr. Lu exchanged 9,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock of the Company for 5,000 shares of Series D Preferred Stock of the Company pursuant to an exemption from registration under Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Exchange"). Upon consummation of the Exchange, there were no shares of Series A Preferred Stock of the Company outstanding.

## **Redemption** Agreement

During the first quarter of 2025, to preserve cash, the Company entered into discussions with Lab Services MSO for the potential redemption of our investment and on February 26, 2025, the Company, Avalon Lab, Laboratory Services MSO, and the other parties signatory thereto, entered into a Redemption and Abandonment Agreement (the "Redemption Agreement"), whereby Laboratory Services MSO redeemed the 40% equity interest in Laboratory Services MSO held by Avalon Lab (the "Redemption"). The aggregate cash amount to Avalon Lab for the Redemption was \$1,745,000, to be paid as follows: one payment of \$95,000 at the closing of the Redemption and, beginning in March 2025, monthly payments of \$75,000 until December 2026. In addition, pursuant to the terms of the Redemption Agreement, all shares of Avalon's Series B Convertible Preferred Stock previously issued to SCBC Holdings LLC as partial consideration for the equity interests of Laboratory Services MSO, were permanently surrendered and relinquished to Avalon for no additional consideration. As a result of the Redemption, beginning in February 2025, we no longer offer laboratory services.

## Agreement and Plan of Merger

On March 7, 2025, the Company, Nexus MergerSub Limited, a business company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company ("Merger Sub"), and YOOV Group Holding Limited a business company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands ("YOOV") entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the "Merger Agreement") pursuant to which Merger Sub will merge with and into YOOV, with YOOV surviving the merger and becoming a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (the "Merger"). The Merger is expected to be completed in the third quarter of 2025, subject to customary closing conditions.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger (the "Effective Time"), each then-outstanding share of YOOV preferred shares, par value \$0.10 per share, will either automatically be converted into shares of YOOV ordinary shares, par value \$0.10 per share (the "YOOV Ordinary Shares") or canceled and cease to exist in accordance with their terms. At the Effective Time, each then-outstanding YOOV Ordinary Share (other than any shares held in treasury and Dissenting Shares (as defined in the Merger Agreement) will be automatically converted into a number of shares of the Company's common stock, par value \$0.0001 per share (the "Avalon Common Stock"), equal to the Exchange Ratio. The "Exchange Ratio" will be the ratio (rounded to four decimal places), determined as follows: if the closing price of the Avalon Common Stock on The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC ("Nasdaq") on the second trading day immediately preceding the Effective time (x) less than or equal to \$5.00, the Exchange Ratio shall be 60,000,000 divided by YOOV Outstanding Shares (as defined in the Merger Agreement); or (y) greater than \$5.00, the Exchange Ratio shall be 54,000,000 divided by YOOV Outstanding Shares.

Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, (i) each then-outstanding share of Avalon Common Stock will remain issued and outstanding after the Effective Time and (ii) each then-outstanding option to purchase Avalon Common Stock, whether or not vested, will remain issued and outstanding after the Effective Time. The thenoutstanding shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company and Series D Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company will remain outstanding in accordance with their terms. Additionally, at the Effective Time, the name of the Company will be changed to "YOOV, Inc."

In connection with the Merger, the Company is seeking approval of its stockholders to, among other things, (i) approve the issuance of the shares of the Company's common stock to be issued to YOOV shareholders in connection with the Merger pursuant to the rules of Nasdaq and (ii) amend the Company's certificate of incorporation to effect a reverse stock split of the Company's common stock to the extent the Company and YOOV mutually agree implementing such reverse stock split is necessary to meet Nasdaq's listing requirements (collectively, the "Avalon Stockholder Matters").

Each of the Company and YOOV have made customary representations, warranties and covenants in the Merger Agreement, including, among other things, covenants relating to (i) obtaining the requisite approval of its respective stockholders, (ii) non-solicitation or facilitation of any Takeover Proposal or Superior Proposal (as each is defined in the Merger Agreement), (iii) the conduct of its respective business during the period between the signing of the Merger Agreement and the closing of the Merger, and (iv) the Company filing with the SEC and causing to become effective a registration statement on Form S-4 (the "Registration Statement") to register the shares of the Company's common stock to be issued in connection with the Merger.

The Company filed the Registration Statement on Form S-4 with the SEC on April 24, 2025, and filed Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 on June 10, 2025.

Consummation of the Merger is subject to certain closing conditions, including, among other things, (i) approval of the Avalon Stockholder Matters by the requisite stockholders of the Company, (ii) adoption and approval of the Merger Agreement, and the transactions contemplated thereby, by the requisite YOOV shareholders, (iii) the effectiveness of the Registration Statement and (iv) the listing of the Company's common stock issuable in connection with the Merger on Nasdaq. Each party's obligation to consummate the Merger is also subject to other specified customary conditions, including regarding the accuracy of the representations and warranties of the other party, subject to the applicable materiality standard, and the performance in all material respects by the other party of its obligations under the Merger Agreement required to be performed on or prior to the Effective Time.

The Merger Agreement contains certain termination rights for both the Company and YOOV, including the right to terminate the Merger Agreement at any time before the Effective Time, whether before or after the Avalon Stockholder Matters have been approved, by mutual written consent of the parties. In addition, the Merger Agreement may be terminated at any time by either party if the Merger is not consummated on or before March 7, 2026 (the "End Date"), provided that the End Date may be extended by either party for up to 60 days in the event that the SEC has not declared effective the Registration Statement by the date which is 60 days prior to the End Date. Upon termination of the Merger Agreement under specified circumstances, the Company may be required to pay YOOV a termination fee of \$1.0 million; however, YOOV is not required to pay the Company a termination fee.

At the Effective Time, the Company's board of directors (the "Avalon Board") is expected to consist of seven members, five of whom will be designated by YOOV and two of whom will be designated by the Company, as provided in the Merger Agreement.

### Voting and Support Agreements

Concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, (i) the officers, directors and certain shareholders of YOOV (solely in their respective capacities as YOOV shareholders) have entered into voting and support agreements with the Company and YOOV, pursuant to which such YOOV shareholders agree, among other things to, (a) not transfer their capital stock of YOOV, subject to certain limited exceptions and (b) vote all of their shares of capital stock of YOOV in favor of the adoption and approval of the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby and against, among other things, any Takeover Proposals (the "YOOV Voting Agreement") and (ii) the officers, directors and certain stockholders of the Company (solely in their respective capacities as the Company stockholders) have entered into voting and support agreements with the Company and YOOV, pursuant to which such Company stockholders agree, among other things to, (a) not transfer their capital stock of the Company, subject to certain limited exceptions and (b) vote all of their shares of capital stock in favor of, among other things, the Avalon Stockholder Matters and against, among other things, any Takeover Proposals (the "Avalon Voting Agreement").

## Lock-Up Agreements

Concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, certain directors, officers and stockholders of each of the Company and YOOV have entered into lock-up agreements (the "Lock-Up Agreement"), pursuant to which, subject to specified exceptions, they have agreed not to transfer their shares of the Company's common stock during the 180-day period following the Effective Time.

## **Certificates of Elimination**

On March 7, 2025, the Company filed a Certificate of Elimination relating to each of the Series A Preferred Stock and the Series B Preferred Stock (the "Eliminations of Designation") with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, thereby terminating the designations of the Series A Preferred Stock and the Series B Preferred Stock. The Eliminations of Designation were effective upon filing and eliminated from the Company's Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation all matters set forth in the previously-filed Certificates of Designations with respect to the previously designated Series A Preferred Stock and Series B Preferred Stock.

## **Bylaws** Amendment

On March 7, 2025, the Board approved and adopted an amendment (the "Amendment") to the Company's Amended and Restated Bylaws (the "Bylaws"). The Amendment reduces the quorum at any meeting of stockholders, except as otherwise required by law or by the Company's Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation or the Bylaws, to one-third of the voting power of the shares of capital stock outstanding and entitled to vote at the meeting, present in person, present by remote communication, if applicable, or represented by proxy.

### Nasdaq Letter Regarding Non-Compliance with Minimum Stockholders' Equity Requirement

On May 22, 2025, the Company received a letter (the "Letter") from the Listing Qualifications Department of The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC ("Nasdaq") indicating that the Company was not in compliance with the minimum stockholders' equity requirement for continued listing on The Nasdaq Capital Market, under Listing Rule 5550(b)(1), because the Company's stockholders' equity of (\$3,891,270), as reported in the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2025, was below the required minimum of \$2.5 million, and because, as of May 22, 2025, the Company did not meet the alternative compliance standards, relating to the market value of listed securities of \$35 million or net income from continuing operations of \$500,000 in the most recently completed fiscal year or in two of the last three most recently completed fiscal years.

The Letter has no immediate impact on the listing of the Company's common stock, which will continue to be listed and traded on The Nasdaq Capital Market, subject to the Company's compliance with the other continued listing requirements. The Company has 45 calendar days from May 22, 2025, or through Monday, July 7, 2025, to submit to Nasdaq a plan to regain compliance with Listing Rule 5550(b)(1). If Nasdaq accepts the Company's plan, Nasdaq may grant an extension of up to 180 calendar days from May 22, 2025, or through Tuesday, November 18, 2025, to regain compliance. If Nasdaq does not accept the Company's plan, the Company will have the right to appeal such decision to a Nasdaq hearings panel.

The Company intends to submit to Nasdaq, within the requisite time period, a plan to regain compliance with Listing Rule 5550(b)(1). There can be no assurance that Nasdaq will accept the Company's plan or that the Company will be able to regain compliance with Listing Rule 5550(b)(1) or maintain compliance with any other Nasdaq requirement in the future.

If our common stock were delisted from The Nasdaq Capital Market, trading of our common stock would most likely take place on an over-the-counter market established for unlisted securities, such as the OTCQB or the Pink Market maintained by OTC Markets Group Inc. An investor would likely find it less convenient to sell, or to obtain accurate quotations in seeking to buy, our common stock on an over-the-counter market, and many investors would likely not buy or sell our common stock due to difficulty in accessing over-the-counter markets, policies preventing them from trading in securities not listed on a national exchange or other reasons. In addition, as a delisted security, our common stock would be subject to SEC rules as a "penny stock," which impose additional disclosure requirements on broker-dealers. The regulations relating to penny stocks, coupled with the typically higher cost per trade to the investor of penny stocks due to factors such as broker commissions generally representing a higher percentage of the price of a penny stock than of a higher-priced stock, would further limit the ability of investors to trade in our common stock. Delisting would materially and adversely affect our ability to raise capital on terms acceptable to us, or at all, and may result in the potential loss of confidence by investors, suppliers, customers and employees and fewer business development opportunities. In addition, the consummation of the pending merger is subject to the satisfaction or waiver of a number of conditions set forth in the Agreement and Plan of Merger (the "Merger Agreement"), dated March 7, 2025, by and among Avalon GloboCare Corp. Nexus MergerSub Limited and YOOV Group Holding Limited, including the absence of any pending order or action from Nasdaq or any Governmental Authority (as defined in the Merger Agreement) with respect to the status of the listing of our common stock, including any delisting order. For these reasons and others, delisting would adversely affect the liquidity, trading volume



### Securities Purchase Agreement, Waiver and Amendment to Series C Certificate of Designations

On June 4, 2025, the Company entered into a securities purchase agreement (the "Securities Purchase Agreement"), with an accredited investor, York Sun Investment Holding Limited, a British Virgin Islands company (the "Investor"), pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue and sell to the Investor, upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Securities Purchase Agreement, 141,643 shares of the Company's common stock, par value \$0.0001 per share, for \$500,000 (the "Purchase Price"), which is equal to a purchase price of \$3.53 per share. The closing is anticipated to occur on or before June 16, 2025, subject to the satisfaction of customary closing conditions.

As previously reported, the Company issued a senior secured promissory note in the principal amount of \$2,845,000.00 (the "Note") to Mast Hill Fund, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (the "Holder"), on June 5, 2024. On May 29, 2025, the Company and the Holder entered into a waiver (the "Waiver"), pursuant to which the Holder waived all potential cash penalties under the Note as a result of the Company's previous issuance of 3,500 shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock. Pursuant to the Waiver, the Holder will retain all related dilutive issuance rights under Section 1.6(e) of the Note, even if there is no event of default under the Note, provided that any adjustment under Section 1.6(e) of the Note shall be subject to a per share floor price equal to one dollar.

As previously reported, the Company filed a certificate of designations of preferences, rights, and limitations of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock (the "Series C Certificate of Designations") on December 13, 2024, with the Department of State, Division of Corporations, of the State of Delaware, which provides for the designation of 10,000 shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company, par value \$0.0001 per share, upon the terms and conditions as set forth in the Series C Certificate of Designations. On May 29, 2025, the Company filed a certificate of amendment to the Series C Certificate of Designations (the "Certificate of Amendment"), pursuant to which the beneficial ownership limitation of 19.99% was amended to 4.99%.

## **Implications of Being a Smaller Reporting Company**

We are a "smaller reporting company" as defined in Rule 12b-2 promulgated under the Exchange Act. We will cease to qualify as a smaller reporting company if we have (1) a non-affiliate public float in excess of \$250 million and annual revenues in excess of \$100 million during our last fiscal year, or (2) a non-affiliate public float in excess of \$700 million, in each case determined on an annual basis as of the last business day of our second quarter. As a smaller reporting company, we are permitted and intend to rely on exemptions from certain disclosure requirements that are applicable to other public companies that are not smaller reporting companies.

## **Corporate Information**

Avalon GloboCare Corp. was incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware on July 28, 2014. On October 9, 2020. Our common stock is listed on The Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol "ALBT." Our principal executive offices are located at 4400 Route 9 South, Suite 3100, Freehold, NJ 07728, and our telephone number is (732) 780-4400. Our website is located at http://www.avalon-globocare.com. The information contained on, or accessible through, our website is not incorporated in, and shall not be part of, this prospectus.

# **RISK FACTORS**

Our business is influenced by many factors that are difficult to predict and that involve uncertainties that may materially affect operating results, cash flows, and financial condition. Before making an investment decision, you should carefully consider these risks, including those set forth in the "Risk Factors" section of our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC, as revised or supplemented by our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC since the filing of our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, all of which are incorporated by reference into this prospectus. You should also carefully consider any other information we include or incorporate by reference in this prospectus or include in any applicable prospectus supplement. Each of the risks described in these sections and documents could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects, and could result in a partial or complete loss of your investment.

# USE OF PROCEEDS

Except as otherwise stated in the applicable prospectus supplement, we intend to use the net proceeds from the sale of the securities covered by this prospectus for general corporate purposes, which may include, but are not limited to, the repayment, refinancing, redemption or repurchase of existing indebtedness, exploration, working capital or capital expenditures, acquisitions and other investments. The precise amount, use and timing of the application of such proceeds will depend upon our funding requirements and the availability and cost of other capital. Additional information on the use of net proceeds from an offering of securities covered by this prospectus may be set forth in the prospectus supplement relating to the specific offering.

# **RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES**

We will provide a table setting forth our ratio of earnings to fixed charges on a historical basis in the applicable prospectus supplement, if required.

# **DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES**

The descriptions of the securities contained in this prospectus, together with any applicable prospectus supplement, summarize all the material terms and provisions of the various types of securities that we may offer. We will describe in the applicable prospectus supplement relating to a particular offering the specific terms of the securities offered by that prospectus supplement. We will indicate in the applicable prospectus supplement if the terms of the securities differ from the terms we have summarized below. We will also include in the prospectus supplement information, where applicable, material United States federal income tax considerations relating to the securities.

We may sell from time to time, in one or more offerings:

- shares of common stock;
- shares of preferred stock;
- warrants to purchase shares of our common stock, preferred stock and/or other securities;
- rights to purchase shares of our common stock, preferred stock, warrants and/or depositary shares;
- stock purchase contracts;
- stock purchase units;
- depositary shares; or
- units consisting of a combination of the foregoing securities.



### DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

The following descriptions of common and preferred stock, together with the additional information we include in any applicable prospectus supplement, summarize the material terms and provisions of the common stock and preferred stock that we may offer under this prospectus but are not intended to be complete. For the full terms of our common and preferred stock, please refer to our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended from time to time, and our Amended and Restated Bylaws, as amended from time to time. The Delaware General Corporation Law ("DGCL") may also affect the terms of these securities. While the terms we have summarized below will apply generally to any future common or preferred stock that we may offer, we will describe the specific terms of any series of these securities in more detail in the applicable prospectus supplement. If we so indicate in a prospectus supplement, the terms of any common or preferred stock we offer under that prospectus supplement may differ from the terms of our outstanding capital stock that we describe below.

### Authorized Capital Stock

As of June 12, 2025, our authorized capital stock consists of 110,000,000 shares of capital stock, par value \$0.0001 per share, of which (i) 100,000,000 shares are designated as common stock, par value \$0.0001 per share, and (ii) 10,000,000 shares are designated as preferred stock. Of the 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, (x) 10,000 shares have been designated as Series C Convertible Preferred Stock, at a stated value equal to \$1,000 per share, and (y) 5,000 shares have been designated as Series D Convertible Preferred Stock, at a stated value equal to \$1,000 per share.

As of June 12, 2025, there were 2,132,236 shares of common stock issued and outstanding held by 236 holders of record, 3,500 shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock issued and outstanding held by 1 holder of record and 5,000 shares of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock issued and outstanding held by 1 holder of record.

### Effects of Authorized but Unissued Stock

Our authorized but unissued shares of common stock and preferred stock are available for future issuance without stockholder approval, subject to any limitations imposed by the listing requirements of the Nasdaq Stock Market. These additional shares may be used for a variety of corporate finance transactions, acquisitions and employee benefit plans. The existence of authorized but unissued and unreserved common stock and preferred stock could make it more difficult or discourage an attempt to obtain control of us by means of a proxy contest, tender offer, merger or otherwise. In addition, if we issue preferred stock in the future, the issuance could adversely affect the voting power of holders of our common stock and the likelihood that such holders will receive dividend payments and payments upon liquidation.

## Common Stock

### Dividends

Dividends may be declared and paid or set apart for payment upon the common stock out of any assets or funds of the Company legally available for the payment of dividends, but only when and as declared by our board of directors or any authorized committee of thereof, subject to any preferential dividend or other rights of the then outstanding preferred stock.

# Voting Rights

Each share of common stock entitles the holders of our common stock to one vote per share on all matters submitted to a vote by our stockholders, including the election of directors; provided, that, unless otherwise required by law, holders of our common stock are not entitled to vote on any amendment to our Certificate of Incorporation (or on any amendment to a certificate of designations of any series of undesignated preferred stock) that relates solely to the terms of one or more outstanding series of our preferred stock, if the holders of such affected series are entitled, either separately or together as a class with the holders of one or more other such series, to vote thereon pursuant to our Certificate of Incorporation. Holders of our common stock do not have cumulative voting rights.

## Rights Upon Liquidation and Dissolution

Upon the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the net assets of the Company shall be distributed pro rata to the holders of the common stock.

### Other Rights

Holders of our common stock have no preemptive, subscription, redemption or conversion rights. The rights, preferences and privileges of holders of common stock are subject to and may be adversely affected by the rights of the holders of shares of any series of preferred stock that we may designate and issue in the future.



## Preferred Stock

In accordance with our Certificate of Incorporation, our board of directors is authorized to direct us to issue shares of undesignated preferred stock in one or more series without stockholder approval. Our board of directors has the discretion to determine the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions, including voting rights, dividend rights, conversion rights, repurchase rights, redemption privileges and liquidation preferences, of each series of preferred stock.

The purpose of authorizing our board of directors to issue preferred stock and determine its rights and preferences is to eliminate delays associated with a stockholder vote on specific issuances. The issuance of preferred stock, while providing flexibility in connection with possible acquisitions, future financings and other corporate purposes, could have the effect of making it more difficult for a third-party to acquire, or could discourage a third-party from seeking to acquire, a majority of our outstanding voting stock.

### Series C Convertible Preferred Stock

The Series C Preferred Stock shall rank (i) senior to the Company's common stock (the "Common Stock") and any other class or series of capital stock of the Company created hereafter, the terms of which specifically provide that such class or series shall rank junior to the Series C Preferred Stock, (ii) pari passu with any class or series of capital stock of the Company created hereafter specifically ranking, by its terms, on par with the Series C Preferred Stock, (iii) pari passu with Series B Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company (the "Series B Preferred Stock") with respect to its rights, preferences and restrictions, and (iv) subordinate to the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company (the "Series A Preferred Stock").

Holders of the Series C Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive, and the Company shall pay, dividends on shares of Series C Preferred Stock equal (on an as-if-converted-tocommon-stock basis, disregarding for such purpose any conversion limitations hereunder) to and in the same form as dividends actually paid on shares of the common stock when, as and if such dividends are paid on shares of the common stock.

Holders of the Series C Preferred Stock have no voting power except as otherwise required by the Delaware General Corporation Law.

Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company, whether voluntary or involuntary (a "Liquidation"), the holders of the Series C Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive out of the assets available for distribution to stockholders, (i) after and subject to the payment in full of all amounts required to be distributed to the holders of another class or series of stock of the Company ranking on liquidation prior and in preference to the Series C Preferred Stock, including the Series A Preferred Stock, (ii) ratably with any class or series of stock ranking on liquidation on parity with the Series C Preferred Stock and (iii) in preference and priority to the holders of the shares of common stock, an amount equal to 100% of the Stated Value of the Series C Preferred Stock, in proportion to the full and preferential amount that all shares of the Series C Preferred Stock are entitled to receive.

Each share of Series C Preferred Stock shall be convertible into common stock (the "Conversion Shares") at a conversion per share equal to \$2.41, at the option of the holder, at any time after the later of (i) the date of the shareholder approval of the issuance of the Conversion Shares pursuant to the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market and (ii) the one year anniversary of the date of the first issuance of any shares of the Series C Preferred Stock. In addition, the holder shall not have the right to convert any portion of the Series C Preferred Stock if, after giving effect to the conversion, such holder (together with its affiliates) would beneficially own in excess of 19.99% of the number of shares of the common stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the issuance of the respective Conversion Shares.

### Series D Convertible Preferred Stock

The Series D Preferred Stock shall rank (i) senior to the Company's common stock and any other class or series of capital stock of the Company created hereafter, the terms of which specifically provide that such class or series shall rank junior to the Series D Preferred Stock, (ii) pari passu with any class or series of capital stock of the Company created hereafter specifically ranking, by its terms, on par with the Series D Preferred Stock, (iii) pari passu with the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company (the "Series B Preferred Stock") with respect to its rights, preferences and restrictions, and (iv) pari passu with the Series C Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company (the "Series C Preferred Stock").

Holders of the Series D Preferred Stock have no voting power except as otherwise required by the Delaware General Corporation Law.

Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company, whether voluntary or involuntary (a "Liquidation"), the holders of the Series D Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive out of the assets available for distribution to stockholders, (i) after and subject to the payment in full of all amounts required to be distributed to the holders of another class or series of stock of the Company ranking on liquidation prior and in preference to the Series D Preferred Stock, including the Series A Preferred Stock, (ii) ratably with any class or series of stock ranking on liquidation on parity with the Series D Preferred Stock and (iii) in preference and priority to the holders of the shares of Common Stock, an amount equal to 100% of the Stated Value of the Series D Preferred Stock, in proportion to the full and preferential amount that all shares of the Series D Preferred Stock are entitled to receive.

Each share of Series D Preferred Stock shall be convertible into common stock (the "Conversion Shares") at a conversion per share equal to \$2.41, at the option of the holder, at any time after the Company has obtained shareholder approval for the issuance of the Conversion Shares pursuant to the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market. In addition, the holder shall not have the right to convert any portion of the Series D Preferred Stock if, after giving effect to the conversion, such holder (together with its affiliates) would beneficially own in excess of 4.99% of the number of shares of the common stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the issuance of the respective Conversion Shares.

## **Anti-Takeover Provisions**

The DGCL, our Certificate of Incorporation and our Bylaws contain provisions that could have the effect of delaying, deferring or discouraging another party from acquiring control of us. The purpose of these provisions, which are summarized below, is to discourage coercive takeover practices and inadequate takeover bids. These provisions are also designed to encourage persons seeking to acquire control of the Company to first negotiate with our board of directors.

Special Meetings. Except as otherwise required by statute and subject to the rights, if any, of the holders of any series of our undesignated preferred stock, special meetings of our stockholders may be called only by the board of directors acting pursuant to a resolution approved by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors then in office. The order of business and all other matters of procedure at any meeting of the stockholders will be determined by a presiding officer designated by our board of directors.

*Removal of Directors.* Our Certificate of Incorporation provides that our directors may be removed only by the affirmative vote of a majority of the voting power of the outstanding shares of capital stock then entitled to vote at an election of directors. In addition, at least 45 days prior to any annual or special meeting of stockholders at which it is proposed that a director be removed from office, written notice of such proposed removal and the alleged grounds thereof must be sent to the director whose removal will be considered at the meeting.

Stockholder Action by Written Consent. Any action that is permitted to be taken by our stockholders by written consent without a meeting must first satisfy the requirements and procedures set forth in our Certificate of Incorporation and our Bylaws.

Advance Notice Requirements for Stockholder Proposals. Our Bylaws establish an advance notice procedure for stockholder proposals to be brought before an annual meeting of stockholders, including proposed nominations of persons for election to our board of directors. Stockholders at an annual meeting are only able to consider proposals or nominations specified in the notice of meeting or brought before the meeting by or at the direction of our board of directors or by a stockholder of record on the record date for the meeting who is entitled to vote at the meeting and who has delivered timely written notice in proper form to our secretary of the stockholder's intention to bring such business before the meeting. These provisions could have the effect of delaying until the next stockholder meeting stockholder actions that are favored by the holders of a majority of our outstanding shares entitled to vote.

Delaware Business Combination Statute. We are subject to Section 203 of the DGCL. Subject to certain exceptions, Section 203 of the DGCL prevents a publicly held Delaware corporation from engaging in a "business combination" with any "interested stockholder" for three (3) years following the date that the person became an interested stockholder, unless the interested stockholder attained such status with the approval of our board of directors or unless the business combination is approved in a prescribed manner. A "business combination" includes, among other things, a merger or consolidation involving us and the "interested stockholder" and the sale of more than 10% of our assets. In general, an "interested stockholder" is any entity or person beneficially owning 15% or more of our outstanding voting stock and any entity or person affiliated with or controlling or controlled by such entity or person.

Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws. The DGCL provides generally that the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares entitled to vote on any matter is required to amend a corporation's certificate of incorporation or by-laws, unless a corporation's certificate of incorporation or by-laws, unless a corporation's certificate of incorporation or by-laws, as the case may be, requires a greater percentage. Our Bylaws may be amended or repealed by the affirmative vote of a majority vote of our board of directors then in office or the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 75% of the voting power of the outstanding shares entitled to vote on such amendment or repeal, voting as a single class; provided, however, that if our board of directors recommends that stockholders approve such amendment or repeal at such meeting of stockholders, such amendment or repeal will only require the affirmative vote of the majority of the voting power of the outstanding shares entitled to vote on such amendment or repeal, voting together as a single class. In addition, the Company reserves the right to amend or repeal the Certificate of Incorporation in the manner now or hereafter prescribed by statute and by the Certificate of Incorporation, and any rights conferred upon the stockholders in the Certificate of Incorporation are granted subject to this reservation. Whenever any vote of the holders of our capital stock is required to amend or repeal any provision of the Certificate of Incorporation, and in addition to any other vote of holders of capital stock that is required by the Certificate of Incorporation, and in addition to any other vote of he outstanding shares of capital stock that is required by the Certificate of Incorporation or by law, such amendment or repeal will require the affirmative vote of the majority of the voting power of the outstanding shares of the voting power of the outstanding of the cortificate of Incorporation are granted subject to this reservation. Whenever any vote of the holders

*Exclusive Forum Selection.* Our Bylaws provide that, unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the Court of Chancery in the State of Delaware shall be the sole and exclusive forum for (i) any derivative action or proceeding brought on behalf of the Company, (ii) any action asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any director, officer, stockholder or other employee of the Company to the Company or the Company's stockholders, (iii) any action asserting a claim arising pursuant to any provision of the DGCL or the Certificate of Incorporation or the Bylaws, or (iv) any action asserting a claim against the Company governed by the internal affairs doctrine. Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring any interest in shares of capital stock of the Company shall be deemed to have notice of and consented to the provisions of our exclusive forum selection as set forth in our Bylaws under *"Exclusive Jurisdiction of Delaware Courts.*" Although our Bylaws contain the choice of forum provision described above, it is possible that a court could rule that such a provision is inapplicable for a particular claim or action or that such provision is unenforceable.

### **Transfer Agent and Registrar**

Vstock Transfer LLC is the transfer agent and registrar for our common stock.

## Listing

Our common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol "ALBT."

## DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS

The following description, together with the additional information we may include in any applicable prospectus supplement, summarizes the material terms and provisions of the warrants that we may offer under this prospectus and any related warrant agreement and warrant certificate. While the terms summarized below will apply generally to any warrants that we may offer, we will describe the specific terms of any series of warrants in more detail in the applicable prospectus supplement. If we indicate in the prospectus supplement, the terms of any warrants offered under that prospectus supplement may differ from the terms described below. Specific warrant agreements will contain additional important terms and provisions.

### General

We may issue warrants for the purchase of common stock, preferred stock and/or other securities in one or more series. We may issue warrants independently or together with common stock, and the warrants may be attached to or separate from these securities.

We will evidence each series of warrants by warrant certificates that we may issue under a separate agreement. We may enter into a warrant agreement with a warrant agent. Each warrant agent may be a bank that we select which has its principal office in the United States. We may also choose to act as our own warrant agent. We will indicate the name and address of any such warrant agent in the applicable prospectus supplement relating to a particular series of warrants.

We will describe in the applicable prospectus supplement the terms of the series of warrants, including:

- the offering price and aggregate number of warrants offered;
- if applicable, the designation and terms of the securities with which the warrants are issued and the number of warrants issued with each such security or each principal
  amount of such security;
- if applicable, the date on and after which the warrants and the related securities will be separately transferable;
- in the case of warrants to purchase common stock, the number or amount of shares of common stock, purchasable upon the exercise of one warrant and the price at which and currency in which these shares may be purchased upon such exercise;
- the manner of exercise of the warrants, including any cashless exercise rights;
- the warrant agreement under which the warrants will be issued;
- the effect of any merger, consolidation, sale or other disposition of our business on the warrant agreement and the warrants; anti-dilution provisions of the warrants, if any;
- the terms of any rights to redeem or call the warrants;



- any provisions for changes to or adjustments in the exercise price or number of securities issuable upon exercise of the warrants;
- the dates on which the right to exercise the warrants will commence and expire or, if the warrants are not continuously exercisable during that period, the specific date or dates on which the warrants will be exercisable;
- the manner in which the warrant agreement and warrants may be modified;
- the identities of the warrant agent and any calculation or other agent for the warrants;
- federal income tax consequences of holding or exercising the warrants;
- the terms of the securities issuable upon exercise of the warrants;
- any securities exchange or quotation system on which the warrants or any securities deliverable upon exercise of the warrants may be listed or quoted; and
- any other specific terms, preferences, rights or limitations of or restrictions on the warrants.

Before exercising their warrants, holders of warrants will not have any of the rights of holders of the securities purchasable upon such exercise, including:

• in the case of warrants to purchase common stock, the right to receive dividends, if any, or, payments upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up or to exercise voting rights, if any.

### **Exercise of Warrants**

Each warrant will entitle the holder to purchase the securities that we specify in the applicable prospectus supplement at the exercise price that we describe in the applicable prospectus supplement. Unless we otherwise specify in the applicable prospectus supplement, holders of the warrants may exercise the warrants at any time up to 5:00 P.M. Eastern Time on the expiration date that we set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement. After the close of business on the expiration date, unexercised warrants will become void.

Holders of the warrants may exercise the warrants by delivering the warrant certificate representing the warrants to be exercised together with specified information, and paying the required exercise price by the methods provided in the applicable prospectus supplement. We will set forth on the reverse side of the warrant certificate, and in the applicable prospectus supplement, the information that the holder of the warrant will be required to deliver to the warrant agent.

Upon receipt of the required payment and the warrant certificate properly completed and duly executed at the corporate trust office of the warrant agent or any other office indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, we will issue and deliver the securities purchasable upon such exercise. If fewer than all of the warrants represented by the warrant certificate are exercised, then we will issue a new warrant certificate for the remaining amount of warrants.

2	n	
4	υ	

### Enforceability of Rights by Holders of Warrants

Any warrant agent will act solely as our agent under the applicable warrant agreement and will not assume any obligation or relationship of agency or trust with any holder of any warrant. A single bank or trust company may act as warrant agent for more than one issue of warrants. A warrant agent will have no duty or responsibility in case of any default by us under the applicable warrant agreement or warrant, including any duty or responsibility to initiate any proceedings at law or otherwise, or to make any demand upon us. Any holder of a warrant may, without the consent of the related warrant agent or the holder of any other warrant, enforce by appropriate legal action the holder's right to exercise, and receive the securities purchasable upon exercise of, its warrants in accordance with their terms.

### Warrant Agreement Will Not Be Qualified Under Trust Indenture Act

No warrant agreement will be qualified as an indenture, and no warrant agent will be required to qualify as a trustee, under the Trust Indenture Act. Therefore, holders of warrants issued under a warrant agreement will not have the protection of the Trust Indenture Act with respect to their warrants.

### Governing Law

Each warrant agreement and any warrants issued under the warrant agreements will be governed by New York law.

### **Calculation Agent**

Any calculations relating to warrants may be made by a calculation agent, an institution that we appoint as our agent for this purpose. The prospectus supplement for a particular warrant will name the institution that we have appointed to act as the calculation agent for that warrant as of the original issue date for that warrant, if any. We may appoint a different institution to serve as calculation agent from time to time after the original issue date without the consent or notification of the holders. The calculation agent's determination of any amount of money payable or securities deliverable with respect to a warrant will be final and binding in the absence of manifest error.



## DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES

### General

We may offer fractional shares of preferred stock, rather than full shares of preferred stock. If we decide to offer fractional shares of preferred stock, we will issue receipts for depositary shares. Each depositary share will represent a fraction of a share of a particular series of preferred stock. An accompanying prospectus supplement will indicate that fraction. The shares of preferred stock represented by depositary shares will be deposited under a deposit agreement between us and a depositary that is a bank or trust company that meets certain requirements and is selected by us. Each owner of a depositary share will be entitled to all of the rights and preferences of the preferred stock represented by the depositary receipts issued pursuant to the deposit agreement. Depositary receipts will be distributed to those persons purchasing the fractional shares of preferred stock in accordance with the terms of the offering.

We have summarized selected provisions of the deposit agreement and the depositary receipts. The form of the depositary agreement and the depositary receipts relating to any particular issue of depositary shares will be filed with the SEC each time we issue depositary shares, and you should read those documents for provisions that may be important to you.

## **Dividends and Other Distributions**

If we pay a cash distribution or dividend on a series of preferred stock represented by depositary shares, the depositary will distribute such dividends to the record holders of such depositary shares. If the distributions are in property other than cash, the depositary will distribute the property to the record holders of the depositary shares. If, however, the depositary determines that it is not feasible to make the distribution of property, the depositary may, with our approval, sell such property and distribute the net proceeds from such sale to the holders of the preferred stock.

### **Redemption of Depositary Shares**

If we redeem a series of preferred stock represented by depositary shares, the depositary will redeem the depositary shares from the proceeds received by the depositary in connection with the redemption. The redemption price per depositary share will equal the applicable fraction of the redemption price per share of the preferred stock. If fewer than all the depositary shares are redeemed, the depositary shares to be redeemed will be selected by lot or pro rata as the depositary may determine.

## Voting the Preferred Stock

Upon receipt of notice of any meeting at which the holders of the preferred stock represented by depositary shares are entitled to vote, the depositary will mail the notice to the record holders of the depositary shares relating to such preferred stock. Each record holder of these depositary shares on the record date, which will be the same date as the record date for the preferred stock, may instruct the depositary as to how to vote the preferred stock represented by such holder's depositary shares. The depositary will endeavor, insofar as practicable, to vote the amount of the preferred stock represented by such depositary shares in accordance with such instructions, and we will take all action that the depositary deems necessary in order to enable the depositary to do so. The depositary will abstain from voting shares of the preferred stock to the extent it does not receive specific instructions from the holders of depositary shares representing such preferred stock.



### Amendment and Termination of the Depositary Agreement

The form of depositary receipt evidencing the depositary shares and any provision of the deposit agreement may be amended by agreement between the depositary and us. Any amendment that materially and adversely alters the rights of the holders of depositary shares will not, however, be effective unless such amendment has been approved by the holders of at least a majority of the depositary shares then outstanding. The deposit agreement may be terminated by the depositary or us only if (a) all outstanding depositary shares have been redeemed or (b) there has been a final distribution in respect of the preferred stock in connection with any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of our Company and such distributed to the holders of depositary receipts.

### **Charges of Depositary**

We will pay all transfer and other taxes and governmental charges arising solely from the existence of the depositary arrangements. We will pay charges of the depositary in connection with the initial deposit of the preferred stock and any redemption of the preferred stock. Holders of depositary receipts will pay other transfer and other taxes and governmental charges and any other charges, including a fee for the withdrawal of shares of preferred stock upon surrender of depositary receipts, as are expressly provided in the deposit agreement to be for their accounts.

### Withdrawal of Preferred Stock

Upon surrender of depositary receipts at the principal office of the depositary, subject to the terms of the deposit agreement, the owner of the depositary shares may demand delivery of the number of whole shares of preferred stock and all money and other property, if any, represented by those depositary shares. Partial shares of preferred stock will not be issued. If the depositary receipts delivered by the holder evidence a number of depositary shares in excess of the number of depositary shares representing the number of whole shares of preferred stock to be withdrawn, the depositary will deliver to such holder at the same time a new depositary receipt evidencing the excess number of depositary shares. Holders of preferred stock thus withdrawn may not thereafter deposit those shares under the deposit agreement or receive depositary receipts evidencing depositary shares therefor.

### Miscellaneous

The depositary will forward to holders of depositary receipts all reports and communications from us that are delivered to the depositary and that we are required to furnish to the holders of the preferred stock.

Neither we nor the depositary will be liable if we are prevented or delayed by law or any circumstance beyond our control in performing our obligations under the deposit agreement. The obligations of the depositary and us under the deposit agreement will be limited to performance in good faith of our duties thereunder, and we will not be obligated to prosecute or defend any legal proceeding in respect of any depositary shares or preferred stock unless satisfactory indemnity is furnished. We may rely upon written advice of counsel or accountants, or upon information provided by persons presenting preferred stock for deposit, holders of depositary receipts or other persons believed to be competent and on documents believed to be genuine.

### **Resignation and Removal of Depositary**

The depositary may resign at any time by delivering notice to us of its election to do so, and we may at any time remove the depositary. Any such resignation or removal will take effect upon the appointment of a successor depositary and its acceptance of such appointment. Such successor depositary must be appointed within 60 days after delivery of the notice of resignation or removal and must be a bank or trust company having its principal office in the United States and meeting certain combined capital surplus requirements.



# **DESCRIPTION OF RIGHTS**

We may issue rights to purchase preferred stock, common stock, warrants or depositary shares. These rights may be issued independently or together with any other security offered hereby and may or may not be transferable by the shareholder receiving the rights in such offering. The applicable prospectus supplement may add, update or change the terms and conditions of the rights as described in this prospectus.

The applicable prospectus supplement will describe the specific terms of any offering of rights for which this prospectus is being delivered, including the following:

- the price, if any, per right;
- the exercise price payable for preferred stock, common stock, warrants, or depositary shares upon the exercise of the rights;
- the number of rights issued or to be issued to each shareholder;
- · the number and terms of preferred stock, common stock, warrants, or depositary shares which may be purchased per right;
- the extent to which the rights are transferable;
- any other terms of the rights, including the terms, procedures and limitations relating to the exchange and exercise of the rights;
- the date on which the holder's ability to exercise the rights shall commence, and the date on which the rights shall expire;
- the extent to which the rights may include an over-subscription privilege with respect to unsubscribed securities; and
- if applicable, the material terms of any standby underwriting or purchase arrangement entered into by us in connection with the offering of such rights.

Holders may exercise rights as described in the applicable prospectus supplement. Upon receipt of payment and the rights certificate properly completed and duly executed at the corporate trust office of the rights agent or any other office indicated in the prospectus supplement, we will, as soon as practicable, forward the applicable securities purchased upon exercise of the rights. If less than all of the rights issued in any rights offering are exercised, we may offer any unsubscribed securities directly to persons other than shareholders, to or through agents, underwriters or dealers or through a combination of such methods, including pursuant to standby arrangements with one or more underwriters or other purchasers, pursuant to which the underwriters or other purchasers may be required to purchase any securities remaining unsubscribed for after such offering, as described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

The description in the applicable prospectus supplement of any rights that we may offer will not necessarily be complete and will be qualified in its entirety by reference to the applicable rights certificate, which will be filed with the SEC.

## DESCRIPTION OF STOCK PURCHASE CONTRACTS AND STOCK PURCHASE UNITS

We may issue stock purchase contracts, including contracts obligating holders to purchase from us, and obligating us to sell to the holders, a specified number of shares of common stock or other securities at a future date or dates, which we refer to in this prospectus as "stock purchase contracts." The price per share of the securities and the number of shares of the securities may be fixed at the time the stock purchase contracts are issued or may be determined by reference to a specific formula set forth in the stock purchase contracts. The stock purchase contracts may be issued separately or as part of units consisting of a stock purchase contract and preferred securities, warrants, other securities or debt obligations of third parties, including U.S. treasury securities, securing the holders' obligations to purchase the securities under the stock purchase contracts, which we refer to herein as "stock purchase units." The stock purchase contracts may require holders to secure their obligations under the stock purchase contracts in a specified manner. The stock purchase contracts also may require us to make periodic payments to the holders of the stock purchase units or vice versa, and those payments may be unsecured or refunded on some basis.

The stock purchase contracts, and, if applicable, collateral or depositary arrangements, relating to the stock purchase contracts or stock purchase units, will be filed with the SEC in connection with the offering of stock purchase contracts or stock purchase units. The prospectus supplement relating to a particular issue of stock purchase contracts or stock purchase units, including the following:

- if applicable, a discussion of material U.S. federal income tax considerations; and
- any other information we think is important about the stock purchase contracts or the stock purchase units.

# **DESCRIPTION OF UNITS**

We may issue units comprised of one or more of the other securities that may be offered under this prospectus, in any combination, including, without limitation, the stock purchase units described above. Each unit will be issued so that the holder of the unit is also the holder of each security included in the unit. Thus, the holder of a unit will have the rights and obligations of a holder of each included security. The unit agreement under which a unit is issued may provide that the securities included in the unit may not be held or transferred separately at any time, or at any time before a specified date.

The prospectus supplement relating to a particular issue of units will describe, among other things:

- the securities comprising the units, including whether and under what circumstances those securities may be held or transferred separately;
- any material provisions related to the issuance, payment, settlement, transfer or exchange of the units or of the securities comprising the units;
- if applicable, a discussion of any special U.S. federal income tax considerations; and
- any material provisions of the governing unit agreement that differ from those described above.

### FORMS OF SECURITIES

Each warrant, right, depositary share, stock purchase contract, stock purchase unit, and unit will be represented either by a certificate issued in definitive form to a particular investor or by one or more global securities representing the entire issuance of securities. Unless the applicable prospectus supplement provides otherwise, certificated securities in definitive form and global securities will be issued in registered form. Definitive securities name you or your nominee as the owner of the security, and in order to transfer or exchange these securities or to receive payments other than interest or other interim payments, you or your nominee must physically deliver the securities to the trustee, registrar, paying agent or other agent, as applicable. Global securities name a depositary or its nominee as the owner of the warrants, rights, depositary shares, stock purchase contracts, stock purchase units, or units represented by these global securities. The depositary maintains a computerized system that will reflect each investor's beneficial ownership of the securities through an account maintained by the investor with its broker/dealer, bank, trust company or other representative, as we explain more fully below.

#### **Global Securities**

We may issue warrants, rights, depositary shares, stock purchase contracts, stock purchase units, and units in the form of one or more fully registered global securities that will be deposited with a depositary or its nominee identified in the applicable prospectus supplement and registered in the name of that depositary or nominee. In those cases, one or more global securities will be issued in a denomination or aggregate denominations equal to the portion of the aggregate principal or face amount of the securities to be represented by global securities. Unless and until it is exchanged in whole for securities in definitive registered form, a global security may not be transferred except as a whole by and among the depositary for the global security, the nominees of the depositary or any successors of the depositary or those nominees.

If not described below, any specific terms of the depositary arrangement with respect to any securities to be represented by a global security will be described in the prospectus supplement relating to those securities. We anticipate that the following provisions will apply to all depositary arrangements.

Ownership of beneficial interests in a global security will be limited to persons, called participants, that have accounts with the depositary or persons that may hold interests through participants. Upon the issuance of a global security, the depositary will credit, on its book-entry registration and transfer system, the participants' accounts with the respective principal or face amounts of the securities beneficially owned by the participants. Any dealers, underwriters or agents participating in the distribution of the securities will designate the accounts to be credited. Ownership of beneficial interests in a global security will be shown on, and the transfer of ownership interests will be effected only through, records maintained by the depositary, with respect to interests of participants, and on the records of participants, with respect to interests of persons holding through participants. The laws of some states may require that some purchasers of securities take physical delivery of these securities in definitive form. These laws may impair your ability to own, transfer or pledge beneficial interests in global securities.



So long as the depositary, or its nominee, is the registered owner of a global security, that depositary or its nominee, as the case may be, will be considered the sole owner or holder of the securities represented by the global security for all purposes under the applicable warrant agreement, rights agreement, deposit agreement, stock purchase contract, stock purchase unit agreement, or unit agreement. Except as described below, owners of beneficial interests in a global security will not be entitled to have the securities represented by the global security registered in their names, will not receive or be entitled to receive physical delivery of the securities in definitive form and will not be considered the owners or holders of the securities under the applicable warrant agreement, rights agreement, stock purchase contract, stock purchase unit agreement. Accordingly, each person owning a beneficial interest in a global security must rely on the procedures of the depositary for that global security and, if that person is not a participant, on the procedures of the participant through which the person owns its interest, to exercise any rights of a holder under the applicable warrant agreement, rights agreement, rights agreement, we understand that under existing industry practices, if we request any action of holders or if an owner of a beneficial interest in a global security desires to give or take any action that a holder is entitled to give or take the applicable warrant agreement, stock purchase unit agreement, stock purchase unit agreement, deposit agreement, deposit agreement, deposit agreement, deposit agreement, deposit agreement, stock purchase to give or take any action that a holder is entitled to give or take under the applicable warrant agreement, deposit agreement, deposit agreement, deposit agreement, deposit agreement, stock purchase contract, stock purchase unit agreement, the depositary for the global security would authorize the participants holding the relevant beneficial interests to giv

Any payments to holders with respect to warrants, rights, depositary shares, stock purchase contracts, stock purchase units, or units, represented by a global security registered in the name of a depositary or its nominee will be made to the depositary or its nominee, as the case may be, as the registered owner of the global security. None of us, or any trustee, warrant agent, unit agent or other agent of ours, or any agent of any trustee, warrant agent or unit agent will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records relating to payments made on account of beneficial ownership interests in the global security or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to those beneficial ownership interests.

We expect that the depositary for any of the securities represented by a global security, upon receipt of any payment to holders of principal, premium, interest or other distribution of underlying securities or other property on that registered global security, will immediately credit participants' accounts in amounts proportionate to their respective beneficial interests in that global security as shown on the records of the depositary. We also expect that payments by participants to owners of beneficial interests in a global security held through participants will be governed by standing customer instructions and customary practices, as is now the case with the securities held for the accounts of customers or registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of those participants.

If the depositary for any of the securities represented by a global security is at any time unwilling or unable to continue as depositary or ceases to be a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act, and a successor depositary registered as a clearing agency under the Exchange Act is not appointed by us within 90 days, we will issue securities in definitive form in exchange for the global security that had been held by the depositary. Any securities issued in definitive form in exchange for a global security will be registered in the name or names that the depositary gives to the relevant trustee, warrant agent, unit agent or other relevant agent of ours or theirs. It is expected that the depositary's instructions will be based upon directions received by the depositary from participants with respect to ownership of beneficial interests in the global security that had been held by the depositary.

28

# PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We may sell the securities being offered pursuant to this prospectus to or through underwriters, through dealers, through agents, or directly to one or more purchasers or through a combination of these methods. The applicable prospectus supplement will describe the terms of the offering of the securities, including:

- the name or names of any underwriters, if, and if required, any dealers or agents;
- the purchase price of the securities and the proceeds we will receive from the sale;
- any underwriting discounts and other items constituting underwriters' compensation;
- any discounts or concessions allowed or re-allowed or paid to dealers; and
- any securities exchange or market on which the securities may be listed or traded.

We may distribute the securities from time to time in one or more transactions at:

- a fixed price or prices, which may be changed;
- market prices prevailing at the time of sale;
- prices related to such prevailing market prices; or
- negotiated prices.

Only underwriters named in the prospectus supplement are underwriters of the securities offered by the prospectus supplement.

If underwriters are used in an offering, we will execute an underwriting agreement with such underwriters and will specify the name of each underwriter and the terms of the transaction (including any underwriting discounts and other terms constituting compensation of the underwriters and any dealers) in a prospectus supplement. The securities may be offered to the public either through underwriting syndicates represented by managing underwriters or directly by one or more investment banking firms or others, as designated. If an underwriting syndicate is used, the managing underwriter(s) will be specified on the cover of the prospectus supplement. If underwriters are used in the sale, the offered securities will be acquired by the underwriters for their own accounts and may be resold from time to time in one or more transactions, including negotiated transactions, at a fixed public offering price or at varying prices determined at the time of sale. Any public offering price and any discounts or concessions allowed or re-allowed or paid to dealers may be changed from time to time. Unless otherwise set forth in the prospectus supplement, the obligations of the underwriters to purchase the offered securities will be subject to conditions precedent, and the underwriters will be obligated to purchase all of the offered securities, if any are purchased.

We may grant to the underwriters options to purchase additional securities to cover over-allotments, if any, at the public offering price, with additional underwriting commissions or discounts, as may be set forth in a related prospectus supplement. The terms of any over-allotment option will be set forth in the prospectus supplement for those securities.

If we use a dealer in the sale of the securities being offered pursuant to this prospectus or any prospectus supplement, we will sell the securities to the dealer, as principal. The dealer may then resell the securities to the public at varying prices to be determined by the dealer at the time of resale. The names of the dealers and the terms of the transaction will be specified in a prospectus supplement.



We may sell the securities directly or through agents we designate from time to time. We will name any agent involved in the offering and sale of securities and we will describe any commissions we will pay the agent in the prospectus supplement.

We may authorize agents or underwriters to solicit offers by institutional investors to purchase securities from us at the public offering price set forth in the prospectus supplement pursuant to delayed delivery contracts providing for payment and delivery on a specified date in the future. We will describe the conditions to these contracts and the commissions we must pay for solicitation of these contracts in the prospectus supplement.

In connection with the sale of the securities, underwriters, dealers or agents may receive compensation from us or from purchasers of the securities for whom they act as agents, in the form of discounts, concessions or commissions. Underwriters may sell the securities to or through dealers, and those dealers may receive compensation in the form of discounts, concessions or commissions from the underwriters or commissions from the purchasers for whom they may act as agents. Underwriters, dealers and agents that participate in the distribution of the securities, and any institutional investors or others that purchase securities directly for the purpose of resale or distribution, may be deemed to be underwriters, and any discounts or commissions received by them from us and any profit on the resale of the common stock by them may be deemed to be underwriting discounts and commissions under the Securities Act. No FINRA member firm may receive compensation in excess of that allowable under FINRA rules, including Rule 5110, in connection with the offering of the securities.

We may provide agents, underwriters and other purchasers with indemnification against particular civil liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, or contribution with respect to payments that the agents, underwriters or other purchasers may make with respect to such liabilities. Agents and underwriters may engage in transactions with, or perform services for, us in the ordinary course of business.

To facilitate the public offering of a series of securities, persons participating in the offering may engage in transactions that stabilize, maintain, or otherwise affect the market price of the securities. This may include over-allotments or short sales of the securities, which involves the sale by persons participating in the offering of more securities than have been sold to them by us. In addition, those persons may stabilize or maintain the price of the securities by bidding for or purchasing securities in the open market or by imposing penalty bids, whereby selling concessions allowed to underwriters or dealers participating in any such offering may be reclaimed if securities sold by them are repurchased in connection with stabilization transactions. The effect of these transactions may be to stabilize or maintain the market price of the securities at a level above that which might otherwise prevail in the open market. Such transactions, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time. We make no representation or prediction as to the direction or magnitude of any effect that the transactions described above, if implemented, may have on the price of our securities.

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, any common stock sold pursuant to a prospectus supplement will be eligible for trading on The Nasdaq Capital Market. Any underwriters to whom securities are sold by us for public offering and sale may make a market in the securities, but such underwriters will not be obligated to do so and may discontinue any market making at any time without notice.

In order to comply with the securities laws of some states, if applicable, the securities offered pursuant to this prospectus will be sold in those states only through registered or licensed brokers or dealers. In addition, in some states securities may not be sold unless they have been registered or qualified for sale in the applicable state or an exemption from the registration or qualification requirement is available and complied with.

30

### LEGAL OPINIONS

The validity of the issuance of the securities offered hereby will be passed upon for us by Anthony, Linder & Cacomanolis, PLLC, West Palm Beach, Florida. As appropriate, legal counsel representing the underwriters, dealers or agents will be names in the accompanying prospectus supplement and may opine to certain legal matters.

#### EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company as of December 31, 2024, and for the year then ended, incorporated by reference from the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2024 have been audited by M&K CPAS, PLLC, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report (which contains an explanatory paragraph relating to the Company's ability to continue as a going concern as described in Note 2 to such financial statements) which is incorporated herein by reference. Such consolidated financial statements have been so incorporated in reliance upon the report of such firm given their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company as of December 31, 2023, and for the year then ended, incorporated by reference from the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2024, have been audited by Marcum LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, as set forth in their report, which contains an explanatory paragraph relating to the Company's ability to continue as a going concern as described in Note 2 to the financial statements, incorporated by reference into this Registration Statement, and are incorporated by reference in reliance upon such report given on the authority of such firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

The consolidated financial statements of YOOV as of March 31, 2024 and 2023, and for the years then ended, incorporated by reference from the Company's Preliminary Proxy Statement and Prospectus on Form S-4, have been audited by ARK Pro CPA & Co., an independent registered accounting firm, as stated in their report. Such financial statements are included in reliance upon the report of such firm given their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

### LIMITATION ON LIABILITY AND DISCLOSURE OF COMMISSION POSITION ON INDEMNIFICATION FOR SECURITIES ACT LIABILITIES

Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, and Amended and Restated Bylaws, as amended, provide that we will indemnify our directors and officers, and may indemnify our employees and other agents, to the fullest extent permitted by DGCL. Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, we have been advised that, in the opinion of the Commission, such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is therefore unenforceable.

#### WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

This prospectus and any subsequent prospectus supplements do not contain all of the information in the registration statement. We have omitted from this prospectus some parts of the registration statement as permitted by the rules and regulations of the SEC. Statements in this prospectus concerning any document we have filed as an exhibit to the registration statement or that we otherwise filed with the SEC are not intended to be comprehensive and are qualified in their entirety by reference to these filings. In addition, we file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. The SEC also maintains a website that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information that we file electronically with the SEC, including us. The SEC's website can be found at http://www.sec.gov. In addition, we make available on or through our website copies of these reports as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file or furnished them to the SEC. Our website can be found at www.avalon-globocare.com. The content contained in, or that can be accessed through, our website is not a part of this prospectus.

### INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to "incorporate by reference" in this prospectus certain information we have filed and will file with the SEC, which means that we may disclose important information in this prospectus by referring you to the document that contains the information. The information incorporated by reference is considered to be an integral part of this prospectus, and information that we file later with the SEC will automatically update and supersede this information. We incorporate by reference the documents listed below:

- our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 ("2024 Annual Report") filed with the SEC on March 31, 2025;
- Our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2025 filed with the SEC on May 13, 2025;
- the following sections from the Preliminary Proxy Statement and Prospectus on <u>Amendment No. 1 to Form S-4</u> filed with the SEC on June 10, 2025: "Risk Factors," "Management after the Merger," "Information About Avalon," "Information About YOOV," "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management, "Certain YOOV Relationships and Related Party Transactions," "Certain Avalon Relationships and Related Party Transactions," "Description of Avalon's Securities," "Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information," "YOOV Financial Statements," "YOOV Management's Discussion And Analysis of Financial Condition And Results of Operations;"
- our Current Reports on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 10, 2025, February 27, 2025, March 10, 2025, May 23, 2025 and June 4, 2025;
- the description of our common stock contained in our Registration Statements on Form 8-A filed with the SEC on<u>October 28, 2016</u> and <u>November 2, 2018</u>, including any amendments and reports filed for the purpose of updating such description, including the description of our common stock included as <u>Exhibit 4.9</u> to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024; and
- all documents filed by us with the SEC pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act on or after the date of this prospectus and before we stop offering
  the securities covered by this prospectus and any accompanying prospectus supplement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, information and documents that we elect to furnish, but not file, or have furnished, but not filed, with the SEC in accordance with SEC rules and regulations is not incorporated into this prospectus and does not constitute a part hereof.

You may access these filings on our website at www.avalon-globocare.com. The information on our website is not incorporated by reference and is not considered part of this prospectus. Also, upon written or oral request, at no cost we will provide to each person, including any beneficial owner, to whom a prospectus is delivered, a copy of any or all of the information that has been incorporated by reference in the prospectus but not delivered with the prospectus. Inquiries should be directed to:

AVALON GLOBOCARE CORP. 4400 Route 9 South, Suite 3100 Freehold, NJ 07728 (732) 780-4400

32

\$100,000,000



# AVALON GLOBOCARE CORP.

Common Stock, Preferred Stock, Warrants, Rights

Depositary Shares and Units

PROSPECTUS

\_\_\_\_\_, 2025

### PART II

### INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

### Item 14. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution.

Set forth below is an estimate (except in the case of the SEC registration fee) of the amount of fees and expenses to be incurred in connection with the issuance and distribution of the offered securities registered hereby, other than underwriting discounts and commission, if any, incurred in connection with the sale of the offered securities. All such amounts will be borne by AVALON GLOBOCARE CORP., a Delaware corporation.

	AMO	DUNT
SEC Registration Fee	\$	15,310
FINRA Filing Fees		(1)
Legal Fees and Expenses		(1)
Accounting Fees and Expenses		(1)
Trustees' Fees and Expenses		(1)
Warrant Agent Fees and Expenses		(1)
Printing Expenses		(1)
Miscellaneous Expenses		(1)
Total		(1)

(1) These fees will be determined based on the securities offered and the number of issuances and accordingly cannot be estimated at this time.

#### Item 15. Indemnification of Directors and Officers.

Section 145 of the DGCL, as amended, authorizes us to indemnify any director or officer under certain prescribed circumstances and subject to certain limitations against certain costs and expenses, including attorney's fees actually and reasonably incurred in connection with any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, to which a person is a party by reason of being one of our directors or officers if it is determined that such person acted in accordance with the applicable standard of conduct set forth in such statutory provisions. The Company's Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation provides that its officers and directors will be indemnified by the Company to the fullest extent authorized by Delaware law, as it now exists or may in the future be amended. In addition, the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation provides that the Company's directors will not be personally liable for monetary damages to the Company or its stockholders for breaches of their fiduciary duty as directors, except to the extent such exemption from liability or limitation thereof is not permitted under the DGCL.

The Company has entered into agreements with its officers and directors to provide contractual indemnification in addition to the indemnification provided for in the charter. The Company's Amended and Restated Bylaws also permit the Company to secure insurance on behalf of any officer, director or employee for any liability arising out of his or her actions, regardless of whether Delaware law would permit such indemnification. The Company has purchased a policy of directors' and officers' liability insurance that insures its officers and directors against the cost of defense, settlement or payment of a judgment in some circumstances and insures the Company against its obligations to indemnify our officers.

These provisions may discourage stockholders from bringing a lawsuit against the Company's directors for breach of their fiduciary duty. These provisions also may have the effect of reducing the likelihood of derivative litigation against officers and directors, even though such an action, if successful, might otherwise benefit us and our stockholders. Furthermore, a stockholder's investment may be adversely affected to the extent we pay the costs of settlement and damage awards against officers and directors pursuant to these indemnification provisions.

The Company believes that these provisions, the directors' and officers' liability insurance and the indemnity agreements are necessary to attract and retain talented and experienced officers and directors.



# Item 16. Exhibits.

The following is a list of all exhibits filed as a part of this registration statement on Form S-3, including those incorporated herein by reference.

# EXHIBIT INDEX

(a) Exhibits

(b)

Exhibit Number	Description
1.1**	Form of Underwriting Agreement.
1.2	Open Market Sale Agreement <sup>SM</sup> , dated as of December 13, 2019, by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Jefferies LLC. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 13, 2019).
2.1	Membership Interest Purchase Agreement, dated November 7, 2022, by and among the Registrant, Laboratory Services MSO, LLC, SCBC Holdings LLC, Avalon Laboratory Services, Inc., The Zoe Family Trust, Bryan Cox and Sarah Cox (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 8, 2022).
2.2	Amended and Restated Membership Interest Purchase Agreement, dated February 9, 2023 by and among the Registrant, Laboratory Services MSO, LLC, SCBC Holdings LLC, Avalon Laboratory Services, Inc., the Zoe Family Trust, Bryan Cox and Sarah Cox (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 13, 2023).
2.3	Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated March 7, 2025, by and among Avalon GloboCare Corp., Nexus MergerSub Limited and YOOV Group Holding Limited (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 10, 2025).
3.1	Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 26, 2018).
3.2	Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, of Avalon GloboCare Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 4, 2023).
3.3	Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 26, 2018).
3.4	Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 8, 2022).
3.5	Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 13, 2023).
3.6	Certificate of amendment dated October 23, 2024 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 29, 2024).
3.7	Certificate of Designations of Preferences and Rights of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company, as filed on December 13, 2024, with the Department of State, Division of Corporations, of the State of Delaware (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 19, 2024).
3.8	Certificate of Designations of Preferences and Rights of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company, as filed on January 6, 2025, with the Department of State, Division of Corporations, of the State of Delaware (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 10, 2025).
3.9	Certificate of Elimination relating to the Series A Preferred Stock, filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware on March 7, 2025 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 10, 2025).
3.10	Certificate of Elimination relating to the Series B Preferred Stock, filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware on March 7, 2025 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 10, 2025).

3.11	Amendment No. 1 to the Avalon Bylaws, as adopted and approved by the Avalon Board on March 7, 2025 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 10, 2025).
3.12	Certificate of Amendment to the Series C Certificate of Designations, as filed on May 29, 2025, with the Department of State, Division of Corporations, of the State of Delaware (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 4, 2025).
4.1	Form of Subscription Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and the December 2016 Accredited Investors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 21, 2016).
4.2 †	Stock Option issued to Luisa Ingargiola dated February 21, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 21, 2017).
4.3	Form of Subscription Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and the March 2017 Accredited Investor (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7, 2017).
4.4	Share Subscription Agreement between Avalon GloboCare Corp., Avalon (Shanghai) Healthcare Technology Co., Ltd., Beijing DOING Biomedical Technology Co., Ltd. and Daron Liang (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7, 2017).
4.5	Warranty Agreement by and between Lu Wenzhao and Beijing DOING Biomedical Technology Co., Ltd., dated February 27, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7, 2017).
4.6	Form of Subscription Agreement between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and the October 2017 Accredited Investors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 26, 2017).
4.7	Form of Warrant to Boustead Securities, LLC in connection with the private placements (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 of the Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 27, 2018).
4.8	Form of Warrant (April 2019) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 26, 2019).
4.9	Description of Securities Registered under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 of the registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 31, 2025).
4.10	Form of Subscription Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Wenzhao "Daniel" Lu dated August 5, 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 8, 2022).
4.11	Form of Subscription Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Emma Li Xu Qingbo dated August 5, 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 8, 2022).
4.12**	Form of Warrant Agreement.
4.13**	Form of Rights Agent Agreement.
4.14**	Form of Rights Certificate.

4.15**	Certificate of Designation for Preferred Stock.
4.16**	Form of Preferred Stock Certificate.
4.17**	Form of Depositary Agreement.
4.18**	Form of Depositary Receipt
4.19**	Form of Stock Purchase Contract
4.20**	Form of Stock Purchase Unit Agreement
4.21**	Form of Unit Agreement
5.1*	Opinion of Anthony, Linder & Cacomanolis, PLLC relating to the base prospectus.
10.1	Share Exchange Agreement dated as of October 19, 2016 by and among Avalon Healthcare System, Inc., the shareholders of Avalon Healthcare System, Inc. and Avalon GloboCare Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 19, 2016).
10.2 †	Executive Employment Agreement, effective December 1, 2016, by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and David Jin (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 2, 2016).
10.3	Agreement of Sale by and between Freehold Craig Road Partnership and Avalon GloboCare Corp., dated December 22, 2016 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 23, 2016).
10.4 †	Executive Employment Agreement by and between Avalon (Shanghai) Healthcare Technology Ltd. and Meng Li, dated January 11, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 11, 2017).
10.5 †	Executive Retention Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Luisa Ingargiola, dated February 21, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 21, 2017).
10.6 †	Indemnification Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Luisa Ingargiola, dated February 21, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 21, 2017).
10.7 †	Director Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Steven P. Sukel dated April 28, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 28, 2017).
10.8 †	Director Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Yancen Lu dated April 28, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 28, 2017).
10.9	Consultation Service Contract between Daopei Investment Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. and Avalon HealthCare System Inc. dated April 1, 2016 (English translation) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 7, 2017).
10.10	Consultation Service Contract between Hebei Yanda Ludaopei Hospital Co., Ltd and Avalon HealthCare System Inc. dated April 1, 2016 (English translation) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 7, 2017).
10.11	Consultation Service Contract between Nanshan Memorial Stem Cell Biotechnology Co., Ltd. and Avalon HealthCare System Inc. dated April 1, 2016 (English translation) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 of Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 7, 2017).
10.12	Loan Agreement between Lotus Capital Overseas Limited and Avalon (Shanghai) Healthcare Technology Co., Ltd. dated April 19, 2017 (English translation) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 14, 2017).
10.13	Securities Purchase Agreement between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Genexosome Technologies Inc. dated October 25, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 26, 2017).

<ul> <li>10.15 Stock Purchase Agreement between Genexosome Technologies Inc., Beijing Jieteng (Genexosome) Biotech Co. Ltd. and Yu Zhou dated Oct (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 26, 2017)</li> <li>10.16 † Executive Retention Agreement between Genexosome Technologies Inc. and Yu Zhou dated October 25, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 26, 2017).</li> <li>10.17 Invention Assignment, Confidentiality, Non-Compete and Non-Solicit Agreement between Genexosome Technologies Inc. and Yu Zhou dated 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 1, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 1, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 1, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 7, 2017).</li> <li>10.18 † Director Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Exchange Commission on November 7, 2017).</li> <li>10.19 Agreement between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Tauzin Consultants, LLC dated November 1, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 7, 2017).</li> <li>10.20 † Letter Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and David Jin dated April 3, 2018 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Corporated by</li></ul>	
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 26, 2017).         10.17       Invention Assignment, Confidentiality, Non-Compete and Non-Solicit Agreement between Genexosome Technologies Inc. and Yu Zhou dated 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 1, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 1, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 7, 2017).         10.18 †       Director Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Wilbert J. Tauzin II dated November 1, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 7, 2017).         10.19       Agreement between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Tauzin Consultants, LLC dated November 1, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 7, 2017).         10.20 †       Letter Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and David Jin dated April 3, 2018 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 7, 2017).	
2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Octob         10.18 †       Director Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Wilbert J. Tauzin II dated November 1, 2017 (incorporated by reference to E the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 7, 2017).         10.19       Agreement between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Tauzin Consultants, LLC dated November 1, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 7, 2017).         10.20 †       Letter Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and David Jin dated April 3, 2018 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Commission on November 1, 2017).	ibit 10.4 of the
the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 7, 2017).         10.19       Agreement between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Tauzin Consultants, LLC dated November 1, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 7, 2017).         10.20 †       Letter Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and David Jin dated April 3, 2018 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Commission of	
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 7, 2017).           10.20 †         Letter Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and David Jin dated April 3, 2018 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Commission of the Comm	Exhibit 10.1 of
	of the Current
on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 4, 2018).	Current Report
10.21 † Letter Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Meng Li dated April 3, 2018 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Conform 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 4, 2018).	Current Report
10.22 Advisory Service Contract between Ludaopei Hematology Research Institute Co., Ltd. and Avalon (Shanghai) Healthcare Technology Co., Ltd. 2018 (English translation) (incorporated by reference to that Form S-1 Registration Statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission 2018).	
10.23 Form of Subscription Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and the April 2018 Accredited Investors (incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 18, 2018).	Exhibit 4.1 of
10.24 Supplementary Agreement Related to Share Subscription by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp., Avalon (Shanghai) Healthcare Technolog Beijing DOING Biomedical Technology Co., Ltd. and Daron Liang dated April 23, 2018 (English translation) (incorporated by reference to Exl Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 26, 2018).	
10.25 Loan Extension Agreement between Lotus Capital Overseas Limited and Avalon (Shanghai) Healthcare Technology Co., Ltd. dated May 3, translation) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissi 2018).	

10.26 †	Director Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Tevi Troy dated June 4, 2018 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 6, 2018).
10.27	Joint Venture Agreement by and between Avalon (Shanghai) Healthcare Technology Co., Ltd. and Jiangsu Unicorn Biological Technology Co., Ltd. dated May 29, 2018 (English translation) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 6, 2018).
10.28 †	Director Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and William Stilley, III dated July 5, 2018 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 10, 2018).
10.29 †	Director Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Steven A. Sanders dated July 30, 2018 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 31, 2018).
10.30	Loan Extension Agreement between Lotus Capital Overseas Limited and Avalon (Shanghai) Healthcare Technology Co., Ltd. dated August 3, 2018 (English translation) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 of the Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 7, 2018).
10.31	Strategic Partnership Agreement between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Weill Cornell Medical College of Cornell University dated August 6, 2018 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 of the Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 7, 2018).
10.32	Equity Joint Venture Agreement by and between Avactis Biosciences, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Avalon GloboCare Corp., and Arbele Limited for the establishment of AVAR (China) BioTherapeutics Ltd. dated October 23, 2018 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 29, 2018).
10.33	Letter Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and David Jin dated January 3, 2019 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 4, 2019).
10.34	Letter Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Luisa Ingargiola dated January 3, 2019 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 4, 2019).
10.35	Letter Agreement by and between Avalon (Shanghai) Healthcare Technology Co. Ltd. and Meng Li dated January 3, 2019 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 4, 2019).
10.36	Promissory Note issued to Daniel Lu dated Mach 18, 2019 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 22, 2019).
10.37†	Director Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Meng Li dated April 5, 2019 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 8, 2019).

10.38†	Director Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Yue "Charles" Li dated April 5, 2019 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 8, 2019).
10.39	Form of Securities Purchase Agreement dated April 25, 2019 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 26, 2019).
10.40	Revolving Line of Credit Agreement dated as of August 29, 2019 between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Wenzhao "Daniel" Lu dated August 29, 2019 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 3, 2019).
10.41	Form of Warrant Redemption and Cancellation Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 21, 2019).
10.42	Letter Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and David Jin dated February 20, 2020 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 24, 2020).
10.43	Letter Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Meng Li dated February 20, 2020 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 24, 2020).
10.44	Letter Agreement by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Luisa Ingargiola dated February 20, 2020 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 24, 2020).
10.45	Debt Settlement Agreement and Release between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Wenzhao "Daniel" Lu (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 22, 2021).
10.46	Corporate Research Agreement between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and the University of Pittsburgh of the Commonwealth System of Higher Education dated July 8, 2021 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 14, 2021).
10.47	Form of Securities Purchase Agreement dated March 28, 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.47 of the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 30, 2022).
10.48	Form of Convertible Note - March 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.48 of the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 30, 2022).
10.49	Loan Extension and Modification Agreement between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Wenzhao Lu dated March 28, 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.49 of the Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 30, 2022).
10.50	Consulting Agreement, dated February 9, 2023, by and between Laboratory Services MSO, LLC and Sarah Cox (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.50 to the registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on April 15, 2024).
10.51	Form of Warrant - March 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 29, 2022).

10.52	Amendment No. 1 to the Equity Joint Venture Agreement entered between Avalon GloboCare Corp., Avactis Biosciences Inc., Arbele Limited and Arbele Biotherapeutics Limited dated April 6, 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.53 of the Form 10-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 11, 2022).
10.53	Letter Agreement between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Fsunshine Trading PTE. Ltd. dated June 8, 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 8, 2022).
10.54	Debt Settlement Agreement and Release between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Wenzhao "Daniel" Lu dated July 25, 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 27, 2022).
10.55	Conversion Agreement between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Fsunshine Trading PTE. Ltd. Dated July 25, 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 27, 2022).
10.56	Form of Balloon Promissory Note issued to S&P Principal LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 8, 2022).
10.57	Form of Mortgage and Security Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 8, 2022).
10.58	Form of Guaranty (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 8, 2022).
10.59	Form of Securities Purchase Agreement for the purchase of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 8, 2022).
10.60	Director Agreement by and Between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Lourdes Felix dated January 9, 2023 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 11, 2023).
10.61	Second Amended and Restated Limited Company Agreement, dated February 9, 2023, by and among Laboratory Services MSO, LLC, SCBC Holdings LLC, the Zoe Family Trust, Bryan Cox, Sarah Cox and the members named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 13, 2023).
10.62	Securities Purchase Agreement, dated May 23, 2023, between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Mast Hill Fund, L.P (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 26, 2023).
10.63	Security Agreement, dated May 23, 2023, by and among Avalon GloboCare Corp., Avalon Healthcare System Inc., Avalon Laboratory Services, Inc., Avalon RT 9 Properties, LLC, Avactis Biosciences, Inc., Laboratory Services MSO, LLC, Genexosome Technologies Inc., International Exosome Association LLC and Mast Hill Fund, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 26, 2023).
10.64	Senior Secured Promissory Note, dated May 23, 2023, between Avalon Globocare Corp. and Mast Hill Fund, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 26, 2023).

10.65	First Warrant, dated May 23, 2023, by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Mast Hill Fund, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 26, 2023).
	Registratit's Current Report on Form 8-K fried with the SEC on May 20, 2025).
10.66	Second Warrant, dated May 23, 2023, by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Mast Hill Fund, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 26, 2023).
10.67	Form of Balloon Mortgage Note (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 26, 2023).
10.68	Form of Second Mortgage and Security Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 26, 2023).
10.69	Form of Guaranty (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 26, 2023).
10.70	Form of Hazardous Material Guaranty and Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on May 26, 2023).
10.71	Sales Agreement, dated June 16, 2023, by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Roth Capital Partners, LLC. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 16, 2023).
10.72	Securities Purchase Agreement, dated July 6, 2023, by and between Avalon Globocare Corp. and Firstfire Global Opportunities, LLC. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 10, 2023).
10.73	Security Agreement, dated July 6, 2023, by and among Avalon GloboCare Corp., Avalon Healthcare System Inc., Avalon Laboratory Services, Inc., Avalon RT 9 Properties, LLC, Avactis Biosciences, Inc., Laboratory Services MSO, LLC, Genexosome Technologies Inc., International Exosome Association LLC and Firstfire Global Opportunities, LLC. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 10, 2023).
10.74	Senior Secured Promissory Note, dated July 6, 2023, by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Firstfire Global Opportunities, LLC. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 10, 2023).
10.75	First Warrant dated July 6, 2023, by and between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Firstfire Global Opportunities, LLC. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 10, 2023).
10.76	Second Warrant, dated July 6, 2023, by and between Avalon Globocare Corp. and Firstfire Global Opportunities, LLC. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 10, 2023).
10.77	Securities Purchase Agreement, dated October 9, 2023, between Avalon Globocare Corp. and Mast Hill Fund, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 13, 2023).

10.78	Security Agreement, dated October 9, 2023, among Avalon Globocare Corp., Avalon Healthcare System Inc., Avalon Laboratory Services, Inc., Avalon RT 9 Properties, LLC, Avactis Biosciences, Inc., Laboratory Services MSO, LLC, Genexosome Technologies Inc., International Exosome Association LLC and Mast Hill Fund, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 13, 2023).
10.79	Senior Secured Promissory Note, dated October 9, 2023, between Avalon Globocare Corp. and Mast Hill Fund, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 13, 2023).
10.80	First Warrant, dated October 9, 2023, between Avalon Globocare Corp. and Mast Hill Fund, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 13, 2023).
10.81	Second Warrant, dated October 9, 2023, between Avalon Globocare Corp. and Mast Hill Fund, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 13, 2023).
10.82	Securities Purchase Agreement, dated October 9, 2023, between Avalon Globocare Corp. and Firstfire Global Opportunities Fund, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 13, 2023).
10.83	Security Agreement, dated October 9, 2023, among Avalon Globocare Corp., Avalon Healthcare System Inc., Avalon Laboratory Services, Inc., Avalon RT 9 Properties, LLC, Avactis Biosciences, Inc., Laboratory Services MSO, LLC, Genexosome Technologies Inc., International Exosome Association LLC and Firstfire Global Opportunities Fund, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 13, 2023).
10.84	Senior Secured Promissory Note, dated October 9, 2023, between Avalon Globocare Corp. and Firstfire Global Opportunities Fund, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 13, 2023).
10.85	First Warrant, dated October 9, 2023, between Avalon Globocare Corp. and Firstfire Global Opportunities Fund, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 13, 2023).
10.86	Second Warrant, dated October 9, 2023, between Avalon Globocare Corp. and Firstfire Global Opportunities Fund, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 13, 2023).
10.87	Mortgage and Security Agreement, dated October 9, 2023, between Avalon Globocare Corp., Mast Hill Fund, L.P and Firstfire Global Opportunities Fund, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 13, 2023).
10.88	Membership Interest Purchase Agreement, dated November 17, 2023, between Avalon Globocare Corp. and Wenzhao Lu (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 22, 2023).
10.89	Mortgage and Security Agreement, dated March 27, 2024, between Avalon Globocare Corp. and Mast Hill Fund, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 27, 2024).
10.90	Mortgage and Security Agreement, dated March 27, 2024, between Avalon Globocare Corp. and Firstfire Global Opportunities Fund, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 27, 2024).

10.91	Senior Secured Convertible Promissory Note, dated March 7, 2024, between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Mast Hill Fund, LP (incorporated by reference to
	Exhibit 10.4 of the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on May 31, 2024).
10.92	Security Agreement, dated March 7, 2024, between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Mast Hill Fund, LP. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the
10.92	
	Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on May 31, 2024).
10.93	Warrant, dated March 7, 2024, between Avalon GloboCare Corp. and Mast Hill Fund, LP. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Registrant's
	Ouarterly Report on Form 10-O filed with the SEC on May 31, 2024).
10.04	Securities Durchase Associated to 5, 2024 between Avelan Claboran Com, and Most Hill Fund J. D. Green moted by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
10.94	Securities Purchase Agreement, dated June 5, 2024, between Avalon Globocare Corp. and Mast Hill Fund, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
	Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 5, 2024).
10.95	Security Agreement, dated June 5, 2024, among Avalon Globocare Corp., Avalon Healthcare System Inc., Avalon Laboratory Services, Inc., Avalon RT 9
	Properties, LLC, Avactis Biosciences, Inc., Genexosome Technologies Inc., International Exosome Association LLC and Mast Hill Fund, L.P. (incorporated by
	reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 5, 2024).
	reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Cartent Report on Form of R find with the SEC on June 5, 2024).
10.00	
10.96	Senior Secured Promissory Note, dated June 5, 2024, between Avalon Globocare Corp. and Mast Hill Fund, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to
	the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 5, 2024).
10.97	First Warrant, dated June 5, 2024, between Avalon Globocare Corp. and Mast Hill Fund, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant's
	Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 5, 2024).
	Currenc Report on Form of K finde with the OFC on Julie 5, 2024).
10.00	
10.98	Second Warrant, dated June 5, 2024, between Avalon Globocare Corp. and Mast Hill Fund, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant's
	Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 5, 2024).
10.99	Mortgage and Security Agreement, dated June 5, 2024, between Avalon Globocare Corp. and Mast Hill Fund, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to
	the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 5, 2024).
	The regulation of Cartesia report on Form of France and the off on same of some of some of
10.100	Consent, Acknowledgement, and Waiver Agreement, between the Company and Holder, dated as of December 15, 2024 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.100	
	10.1 to the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 19, 2024).
10.101	Common Stock Purchase Warrant, between the Company and Holder, dated as of December 15, 2024 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
	registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 19, 2024).
10.102	Securities Purchase Agreement, between the Company and Holder, dated as of December 19, 2024 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant's
10.102	
	Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 26, 2024).
10.103	Redemption and Abandonment Agreement, dated February 26, 2025, by and among Avalon GloboCare Corp., Avalon Laboratory Services, Inc., Laboratory
	Services MSO, LLC, SCBC Holdings LLC, the Zoe Family Trust, Bryan Cox and Sarah Cox (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant's
	Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 27, 2025).
	Current Report on Form of R mod what the offer on Format 27, 2025
10.104	
10.104	Form of Avalon Voting and Support Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on
	March 10, 2025).
10.105	Form of YOOV Voting and Support Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on
	March 10, 2025).

10.106	Form of Lock-Up Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 10, 2025).
10.107	Amended and Restated 2020 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.107 to the registrant's registration statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC on April 24, 2025).
10.108	Employment Contract, dated March 10, 2023, between YOOV Internet Technology (HK) Limited and Lai Kam Fu (Kenny). (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.108 to the registrant's registration statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC on April 24, 2025).
10.109	Employment Contract, dated June 1, 2017, between YOOV Internet Technology Limited and Wong Ho Chi Mark. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.109 to the registrant's registration statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC on April 24, 2025).
10.110	Employment Contract, dated July 29, 2019, between YOOV Internet Technology Limited and Wong Ling Yan Philip. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.110 to the registrant's registration statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC on April 24, 2025).
10.111	Securities Purchase Agreement, between the Company and Investor, dated as of June 4, 2025 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 4, 2025).
10.112	Waiver, between the Company and Holder, dated as of May 29, 2025 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 4, 2025).
10.113	Ingargiola Combined Company Executive Retention Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.111 to Amendment No. 1 to the registrant's registration statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC on June 10, 2025).
10.114	Wong Combined Company Executive Retention Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.112 to Amendment No. 1 to the registrant's registration statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC on June 10, 2025).
10.115	Mark Wong Combined Company Executive Retention Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.113 to Amendment No. 1 to the registrant's registration statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC on June 10, 2025).
19.1	Insider Trading Policy. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 19.1 of the registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 31, 2025).
21.1	List of Subsidiaries (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 of the Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 20, 2018).
23.1*	Consent of M&K CPA's, PLLC, independent registered public accounting firm of Avalon GloboCare Corp. for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024.
23.2*	Consent of Marcum LLP, independent registered public accounting firm of Avalon GloboCare Corp. for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.
23.3*	Consent of ARK Pro CPA & Co, independent registered public accounting firm of YOOV, Inc
24.1*	Power of Attorney (included on the signature page of this Registration Statement on Form S-3).
97.1	Avalon GloboCare Corp. Compensation Recovery Policy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 97.1 to the registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on April 15, 2024).
107*	Filing Fee Table

\* Filed herewith.

\*\* To be filed by amendment.

† Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

#### Item 17. Undertakings.

(a) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:

(1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration statement:

(i) To include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 193, as amended (the "Securities Act");

(ii) To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in the registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the SEC pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than 20 percent change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the "Calculation of Registration Fee" table in the effective registration statement; and

(iii) To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the registration statement or any material change to such information in the registration statement;

provided, however, that paragraphs (a)(1)(i), (a)(1)(ii), and (a)(1)(iii) above do not apply if the information required to be included in a post-effective amendment by those paragraphs is contained in reports filed with or furnished to the SEC by the registrant pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Exchange Act") that are incorporated by reference in the registration statement, or is contained in a form of prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) that is a part of the registration statement.

(2) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

(3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the termination of the offering.

(5) That, for the purpose of determining liability under the Securities Act to any purchaser:

(A) Each prospectus filed by the registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) shall be deemed to be part of the registration statement as of the date the filed prospectus was deemed part of and included in the registration statement; and

(B) Each prospectus required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2), (b)(5), or (b)(7) as part of a registration statement in reliance on Rule 430B relating to an offering made pursuant to Rule 415(a)(1)(i), (vii), or (x) for the purpose of providing the information required by Section 10(a) of the Securities Act shall be deemed to be part of and included in the registration statement as of the earlier of the date such form of prospectus is first used after effectiveness or the date of the first contract of sale of securities in the offering described in the prospectus. As provided in Rule 430B, for liability purposes of the issuer and any person that is at that date an underwriter, such date shall be deemed to be a new effective date of the registration statement relating to the securities in the registration statement to which that prospectus relates, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof. *Provided, however*, that no statement made in a registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement or made in a purchaser with a time of contract of sale prior to such effective date, supersed or modify any statement that was made in the registration statement or made in any such document immediately prior to such effective date.

(6) That, for the purpose of determining liability of the registrant under the Securities Act to any purchaser in the initial distribution of the securities:

The undersigned registrant undertakes that in a primary offering of securities of the undersigned registrant pursuant to this registration statement, regardless of the underwriting method used to sell the securities to the purchaser, if the securities are offered or sold to such purchaser by means of any of the following communications, the undersigned registrant will be a seller to the purchaser and will be considered to offer or sell such securities to such purchaser:

(i) Any preliminary prospectus or prospectus of the undersigned registrant relating to the offering required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424;

(ii) Any free writing prospectus relating to the offering prepared by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant or used or referred to by the undersigned registrant;

(iii) The portion of any other free writing prospectus relating to the offering containing material information about the undersigned registrant or its securities provided by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant; and

(iv) Any other communications that is an offer in the offering made by the undersigned registrant to the purchaser.

(b) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act, each filing of the registrant's annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan's annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan's annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan's annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan's annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the exchange Act (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan's annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the exchange Act (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan's annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the exchange Act (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan's annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the exchange Act (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan's annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the exchange Act (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan's annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the exchange Act (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan's annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the exchange Act (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan's annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the exchange Act (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan's annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the exchange Act (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan's annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the exchange Act (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan's annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the exchange Act (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee

(h) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the SEC such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

(j) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to file an application for the purpose of determining the eligibility of the trustee to act under subsection (a) of Section 310 of the Trust Indenture Act (the "Act") in accordance with the rules and regulations prescribed by the SEC under Section 305(b)(2) of the Act.

## SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this registration statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the Freehold, New Jersey on June 12, 2025.

AVALON GLOBOCARE CORP.

By:	/s/ David Jin, M.D., Ph.D.	
	David Jin, M.D., Ph.D.	
	Chief Executive Officer	

## POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each of the undersigned persons whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Mr. David Jin, M.D., Ph.D., his or her true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power of substitution and revocation, for him or her and in his or her name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to execute any or all amendments including any post-effective amendments and supplements to this Registration Statement, and any additional Registration Statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b), and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorney-in-fact and agent full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done, as fully to all intents and purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorney-in-fact and agent, or his or her substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement on Form S-3 has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature	Title	date
/s/ David Jin, M.D., Ph.D. David Jin, M.D., Ph.D.	President, Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal Executive Officer)	June 12, 2025
<i>/s/ Luisa Ingargiola</i> Luisa Ingargiola	Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)	June 12, 2025
/s/ Wenzhao Lu Wenzhao Lu	Chairman of the Board of Directors	June 12, 2025
/s/ Steven A. Sanders Steven A. Sanders	Director	June 12, 2025
<i>/s/ Lourdes Felix</i> Lourdes Felix	Director	June 12, 2025
/s/ Wilbert J. Tauzin II Wilbert J. Tauzin II	Director	June 12, 2025
/s/ William B. Stilley, III William B. Stilley, III	Director	June 12, 2025
/s/ Tevi Troy Tevi Troy	Director	June 12, 2025



LAURA ANTHONY, ESQ. CRAIG D. LINDER, ESQ.\* JOHN CACOMANOLIS, ESQ.\*\*

ASSOCIATES AND OF COUNSEL: JOSEPHINE CARINO, ESQ.\*\*\* CHAD FRIEND, ESQ., LLM MICHAEL R. GEROE, ESQ., CIPP/US\*\*\*\* JESSICA HAGGARD, ESQ. \*\*\*\*\* CHRISTOPHER T. HINES, ESQ. \*\*\*\*\* PETER P. LINDLEY, ESQ., CPA, MBA JOHN LOWY, ESQ. \*\*\*\*\*\* STUART REED, ESQ. LAZARUS ROTHSTEIN, ESQ. SVETLANA ROVENSKAYA, ESQ. \*\*\*\*\*\*\*\* HARRIS TULCHIN, ESQ. \*\*\*\*\*\*\*

\*licensed in CA, FL and NY \*\*licensed in FL and NY \*\*\* licensed in CA \*\*\*\*\*licensed in CA, DC, MO and NY \*\*\*\*\*\* licensed in Missouri \*\*\*\*\*\*\* licensed in CA and DC \*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*licensed in NY and NJ

June 12, 2025

Avalon GloboCare Corp. 4400 Route 9 South, Suite 3100 Freehold, New Jersey 07728

Re: Avalon GloboCare Corp. Shelf Registration Statement on Form S-3

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have acted as counsel for Avalon GloboCare Corp., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), in connection with the preparation of a Registration Statement on Form S-3 (the "Registration Statement") under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The Registration Statement relates to (i) shares of the Company's common stock, par value \$0.0001per share (the "Common Stock"), (ii) shares of the Company's preferred stock, par value \$0.0001per share (the "Preferred Stock"), (iii) the Company's debt securities consisting of senior debt, subordinated debt or debentures (the "Debt Securities"), (iv) the Company's depositary shares representing interests in fractional shares of Preferred Stock (the "Depositary Shares"), (v) the Company's warrants to purchase Common Stock, Preferred Stock, Debt Securities or other securities (the "Warrants"), (vi) the Company's rights to purchase Common Stock, Preferred Stock, Warrants, Depositary Shares or Debt Securities (the "Rights"), (vii) the Company's stock purchase contracts to purchase Common Stock or other securities (the "Stock Purchase Contracts"), (viii) the Company's obligations under stock purchase units, each representing ownership of Stock Purchase Contracts and debt securities, preferred securities, warrants, other securities or debt obligations of third parties, including U.S. treasury securities, securing a holder's obligation to purchase the securities under such Stock Purchase Contracts (the "Stock Purchase Units"), and (ix) units issued by the Company comprised of any of the foregoing securities listed in (i) through (viii) above (the "Units"), or any combination of the foregoing, each on the terms to be determined at the time of each offering, in an aggregate amount not to exceed \$100,000,000. The Common Stock, Preferred Stock, Debt Securities, Depositary Shares, Warrants, Rights, Stock Purchase Contracts, Stock Purchase Units and Units, plus any additional Common Stock, Preferred Stock, Warrants, Rights, Depositary Shares, Stock Purchase Contracts, Stock Purchase Units and Units that may be registered pursuant to any subsequent registration statement that the Company may hereafter file with the Commission pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act in connection with the offering by the Company contemplated by the Registration Statement are collectively referred to herein as the "Securities." The Securities being registered for sale by the Company are for a maximum aggregate offering price of \$100,000,000. Such Securities may be offered and sold from time to time pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act, at which time it is contemplated that the Offering Prospectus included in the Registration Statement will be supplemented in the future by one or more supplements (each, a "Prospectus Supplement").

<u>WWW.ALCLAW.COM</u> <u>WWW.SECURITIESLAWBLOG.COM</u>

DIRECT E-MAIL: LANTHONY@ALCLAW.COM

This opinion letter is furnished to you to enable you to fulfill the requirements of Item 601(b)(5) of Regulation S-K, 17 C.F.R. §229.601(b)(5), in connection with the Registration Statement.

The Depositary Shares are to be issued from time to time pursuant to a deposit agreement (the "Deposit Agreement") to be entered into between the Company and a bank or trust company (the "Depositary") selected by the Company. The Warrants will be issued under a warrant agreement (the "Warrant Agreement") between the Company and a warrant agent (the "Warrant Agent") selected by the Company. The Rights will be issued pursuant to a rights agreement (the "Rights Agreement") between the Company and a rights agent (the "Rights Agent") selected by the Company. The Stock Purchase Contracts will be issued pursuant to a purchase contract (the "Purchase Contract Agent") between the Company and a purchase contract agent (the "Purchase Contract Agent") selected by the Company and a purchase contract agent (the "Purchase Contract Agent") selected by the Company and a purchase unit agreement (the "Stock Purchase Unit Agreement") between the Company and a stock purchase unit agent (the "Stock Purchase Unit Agent") selected by the Company. The Units will be issued pursuant to a unit agent (the "Stock Purchase Unit Agent") selected by the Company. The Units will be issued pursuant to a unit agent (the "Unit Agent") selected by the Company. The Deposit Agreement, the Warrant Agreement, the Rights Agreement, the Purchase Contract Agreement, the Stock Purchase Unit Agent") selected by the Company. The Deposit Agreement, the Warrant Agreement, the Rights Agreement, the Purchase Contract Agreement, the Stock Purchase Unit Agreement and the Unit Agreement are hereinafter referred to collectively as the "Transaction Agreements."

We have assumed that the execution and delivery of, and the performance of all obligations under, the Transaction Agreements will be duly authorized by all requisite action by the parties thereto, that the Transaction Agreements will be duly executed and delivered by the parties thereto, that the Deposit Agreement will be a valid and binding agreement of the Depositary, enforceable against the Depositary in accordance with its terms, that the Warrant Agreement will be a valid and binding agreement of the Warrant Agent in accordance with its terms, that the Rights Agreement will be a valid and binding agreement of the Rights Agent, enforceable against the Purchase Contract Agent in accordance with its terms, that the Rights Agreement will be a valid and binding agreement of the Purchase Contract Agent, enforceable against the Purchase Contract Agent in accordance with its terms, that the Stock Purchase Unit Agreement will be a valid and binding agreement of the Stock Purchase Unit Agent, enforceable against the Stock Purchase Unit Agreement will be a valid and binding agreement of the Unit Agent, enforceable against the Unit Agent in accordance with its terms.

In rendering our opinions set forth below, we have reviewed such corporate documents and records of the Company, such certificates of public officials and such other matters as we have deemed necessary or appropriate for purposes of this opinion letter. As to facts material to the opinions expressed herein, we have relied upon oral and written statements and representations of officers and other representatives of the Company and relied on certificates of public officials. We also have assumed (a) the authenticity of all documents submitted to us as originals; (b) the conformity to the originals of all documents submitted to us as copies; (c) the genuineness of all signatures; (d) the legal capacity of natural persons; and (e) the truth, accuracy and completeness of the information, factual matters, representations and warranties contained in all of such documents.

2

Based upon and subject to the foregoing, and subject to the assumptions, qualifications and limitations set forth herein, we are of the opinion that:

- 1. Upon the due authorization of the issuance of shares of Common Stock and the issuance and sale thereof as described in the Registration Statement, such shares of Common Stock will be validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable;
- Upon the due authorization of the issuance of shares of Preferred Stock and the issuance and sale thereof as described in the Registration Statement, such shares of Preferred Stock will be validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable;
- 3. Upon due authorization, the Debt Securities, when (a) the definitive terms and provisions of such Debt Securities have been duly established, (b) any supplemental indenture has been duly executed and delivered by the Company and the Trustee and (c) when the Debt Securities are duly executed and delivered by the Company and authenticated by the Trustee in accordance with the applicable Indenture and paid for by the purchasers thereof, the Debt Securities will be legally issued by the Company and will constitute the valid and legally binding obligations of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with their terms;
- 4. Upon the due authorization of the issuance of the Depositary Shares and the issuance and delivery thereof in accordance with the terms of the applicable Deposit Agreement, such Depositary Shares will have been validly issued, will represent a valid evidence of interest in the related Preferred Stock and will entitle the holders thereof to the rights specified in the Deposit Agreement;
- Upon the due authorization of the Warrants and when duly executed by the Company and countersigned by the Warrant Agent in accordance with the applicable Warrant Agreement, the Warrants will constitute valid and binding obligations of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with their terms;
- 6. Upon the due authorization of the Rights and when duly executed by the Company and countersigned by the Rights Agent in accordance with the applicable Rights Agreement, the Rights will constitute valid and binding obligations of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with their terms;
- Upon the due authorization of the Stock Purchase Contracts and when duly executed by the Company and countersigned by the Purchase Contract Agent in accordance with the applicable Purchase Contract Agreement, the Stock Purchase Contracts will constitute valid and binding obligations of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with their terms;
- 8. Upon the due authorization of the Stock Purchase Units and when duly executed by the Company and countersigned by the Stock Purchase Unit Agent in accordance with the applicable Stock Purchase Unit Agreement, the Stock Purchase Units will constitute valid and binding obligations of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with their terms; and
- 9. Upon the due authorization of the Units and when duly executed by the Company and countersigned by the Unit Agent in accordance with the applicable Unit Agreement, the Units will constitute valid and binding obligations of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with their terms.

The opinions set forth above are subject, as the enforcement of remedies, to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, preference, receivership, moratorium, fraudulent conveyance or similar laws relating to or affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally and to the effect of general principles of equity, whether considered in a proceeding in equity or at law (including the possible unavailability of specific performance or injunctive relief), concepts of materiality, reasonableness, good faith and fair dealing, and the discretion of the court before which a proceeding is brought.



In rendering the foregoing opinions, we have assumed that: (i) the Registration Statement, and any amendments thereto, shall have become effective under the Securities Act and will remain effective at the time of issuance of any Securities thereunder); (ii) a Prospectus Supplement describing each class or series of Securities offered pursuant to the Registration Statement, to the extent required by applicable law and relevant rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission"), will be timely filed with the Commission; (iii) the definitive terms of each class or series of Securities shall have been established in accordance with resolutions duly adopted by the Board (or an authorized committee thereof) (each, a "Board Action"), the Company's Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, (the "Charter") and applicable law; (iv) the Company will issue and deliver the Securities in the manner contemplated by the Registration Statement, the Prospectuses, the applicable Prospectus Supplement and any applicable underwriting agreement; (v) the total number of shares of Common Stock issuable (including upon conversion, exchange or exercise of any other Security) will not exceed the total number of shares of Common Stock, that the Company is then authorized to issue under its Charter; (vi) the Board Action authorizing the Company to issue, offer and sell the Securities will have been adopted by the Board (or an authorized committee thereof) and will be in full force and effect at all times at which the Securities are offered or sold by the Company; and (vii) all Securities will be issued in compliance with applicable federal and state securities laws.

We express no opinion herein as to the law of any state or jurisdiction other than the laws of the State of Florida, State of Delaware, State of New York, and the federal laws of the United States of America. We are not rendering any opinion as to compliance with any federal or state antifraud law, rule, or regulation relating to securities, or to the sale or issuance thereof.

This opinion is given as of the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to advise you after the date hereof of facts or circumstances that come to our attention or changes in law that occur, in each case, subsequent to the effectiveness of the Registration Statement, which could affect the opinions contained herein. This opinion is being rendered for the benefit of the Company in connection with the matters addressed herein.

We hereby consent to the filing of this opinion letter with the Commission as Exhibit 5.1 to the Registration Statement in accordance with the requirements of Item 601(b)(5) of Regulation S–K under the Securities Act and to the reference to our firm therein and in the Prospectuses and any Prospectus Supplement under the caption "Legal Matters." In giving such consent, we do not thereby admit that this firm is within the category of persons whose consent is required under Section 7 of the Securities Act or the rules and regulations of the Commission thereunder.

Sincerely yours,

/s/ Laura E. Anthony Laura E. Anthony, For the Firm

1700 PALM BEACH LAKES BLVD., SUITE 820 • WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA • 33401 • PHONE: 561-514-0936



# CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Forms S-3 of our report dated March 31, 2025, with respect to the consolidated financial statements of Avalon GloboCare Corp. included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024, and the reference to our firm under the caption "Experts" in the Registration Statement.

/s/ M&K CPAS, PLLC

The Woodlands, TX June 12, 2025

# CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in this Registration Statement on Form S-3 of our report dated April 15, 2024 with respect to the financial statements of Avalon GloboCare Corp. for the year ended December 31, 2023 included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K. We also consent to the reference to us under the heading "Experts" in such Registration Statement.

/s/ Marcum llp

New York, NY June 12, 2025



T : (852) 3105 3983 F : (852) 3105 3887 E : info@arkcpa.com.hk

# CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporated by reference in this Registration Statement on Form S-3 of our report dated April 24, 2025 relating to the consolidated financial statements of YOOV Group Holding Limited ("the Company"), with respect to our audits of the consolidated balance sheets of the Company and its subsidiaries as of March 31, 2024 and 2023, and related consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for each of the year in the two years period ended March 31, 2024, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the "consolidated financial statements"), which report is included in the Form S-4 (File No. 333-286738, filed with the SEC on April 24, 2025) and Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-286738, filed with the SEC on April 24, 2025) and Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-286738, filed with the SEC on April 24, 2025) and Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-286738, filed with the SEC on April 24, 2025) and Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-286738, filed with the SEC on April 24, 2025) and Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-286738, filed with the SEC on April 24, 2025).

We also consent to the reference to us under the heading "Experts" in such Registration Statement.

/s/ ARK Pro CPA & Co

ARK PRO CPA & Co

Hong Kong, China June 12, 2025

PCAOB Firm ID: 3299

香港九龍新蒲崗太子道東698號寶光商業中心16樓1602-03室 Unit 1602-03, 16/F., Stelux House, 698 Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

### **Calculation of Filing Fee Tables**

### Form S-3

### (Form Type)

### Avalon GloboCare Corp. (Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)

## Table 1: Newly Registered Securities

Security Type	Security Class Title	Fee Calculation Rule	Amount Registered(2)	Proposed Maximum Offering Price Per Share(2)	Maximum Aggregate Offering Price	Fee Rate	Amount of Registration Fee
Equity(1)	Common Stock, \$0.0001 par value per share	—	—	—	—	—	—
Equity(1)	Preferred Stock, \$0.0001 par value per share	—	—	—	—	—	—
Debt(1)	Debt Securities	—	—	—	—	—	—
Other(1)	Warrants	—	—	—	—	—	—
Other(1)	Units	—	—	—	—	—	—
Other	Subscription Rights	—	—	—	—	—	—
Unallocated (Universal) Shelf (1)	_	457(o)	_	(3)	\$ 100,000,000	0.00015310	\$ 15,310
	Total Offering Amoun	ts					\$ 15,310
Total Fees Previously Paid Total Fee Offsets							\$ —
							\$ —
	Net Fee Due						\$ 15,310

(1) Represents securities that may be offered and sold from time to time in one or more offerings by Avalon GloboCare Corp. (the "Registrant").

- (2) There are being registered hereunder an indeterminate number of shares of common stock and preferred stock, an indeterminate principal amount of debt securities, an indeterminate number of warrants to purchase common stock, preferred stock or debt securities, an indeterminate number of units, and an indeterminate number of subscription rights to purchase an indeterminate number of common stock or preferred stock, from time to time, which together shall have an aggregate initial offering price not to exceed \$100,000,000. If any debt securities are issued at an original issue discount, then the offering price of such debt securities shall be in such greater principal as shall result in an aggregate offering price not to exceed \$100,000,000 less the aggregate dollar amount of all securities previously issued hereunder. Any securities registered hereunder may be sold separately or as units with other securities registered hereunder. The proposed maximum offering price of the securities registered hereunder also include an indeterminate number of shares of common stock and preferred stock and amount of debt securities as may be issued upon conversion of or exchange for preferred stock and amount of debt securities as may be issued to the anti-dilution provisions of any the securities registered hereunder. In addition, pursuant to Rule 416(a) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, the shares being registered hereunder include an indeterminate number of shares of common stock and preferred stock as may be issuable with respect to the shares being registered hereunder include an indeterminate number of shares of common stock and preferred stock as may be issuable with respect to the shares being registered hereunder include an indeterminate number of shares of common stock and preferred stock as may be issuable with respect to the shares being registered hereunder as a result of stock splits, stock dividends or similar transactions.
- (3) The proposed maximum aggregate offering price per class of security will be determined from time to time by the Registrant in connection with the issuance by the Registrant of the securities registered hereunder and is not specified as to each class of security pursuant to General Instruction II.F. of Form S-3 under the Securities Act.